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Chairman’'s Statement
TERES
Dear Shareholders,

The Group’s revenue and gross profit from continuing operations
for the year amounted to approximately HK$15.5 million (2015:
HK$38.0 million) and HK$3.8 million (2015: HK$1.47 million),
respectively. The gross profit for the year was primarily attributable
to the sale of electric buses. The decrease in sales of electric
vehicles during the year was attributable to market changes
caused by the cut of fiscal subsidy for electric vehicles from the
Chinese government in 2016.

Nonetheless, the Board remains optimistic that the new energy
vehicle market in China will revive in the near future after the
market adjustment. The Company pursues innovativeness,
sophistication and excellence in its design and development of
electric vehicles. The Board believes that the reformed measures
for the new energy vehicle market implemented by the Chinese
government will ultimately exert positive impact on the sale of our
electric vehicles.

In addition to our business operation in electric bus for public
transport operators, the Company also commenced the
development of electric passenger cars for individual customers.
After years of concentrated efforts, the Group recently achieved
certain breakthroughs in terms of new energy vehicle technology
research and development as well as market expansion. The Group
showcased three vehicle prototypes, namely H600, K550 and
K750 in the Geneva Motor Show in March 2017 and the Shanghai
Car Show in April 2017, and received enthusiastic and positive
response from our peers and the market.

The coming year will be a turning point for the clean energy
vehicle business of the Group to achieve major breakthrough
and boost its performance. The Group will further our efforts to
advocate environmental protection around the world. We will
contribute to the control of pollution, particularly air pollution,
by promoting the use of clean and efficient range extended
clean energy vehicles. We will also fulfill our corporate social
responsibility while maximising our shareholder value.

Once again, | would like to express my appreciation to the support
of our shareholders, directors and employees.

Yeung Yung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 August 2017

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016

BRIAR

RAFE  AEBRERBESEEB ZBAK
EFDRI# 415,500,000/ 70 ( —F—hHF:
38,000,000/ 7T ) %3,800,000/ 7 (—Z—H
F:1,470,00087) - AFEZEFNEEZIRE
HEBHE T - HRFPEBRTR T —RF
RSB REM BRI ER MR E LR
SAFEEE)TEHERE Nko

A EFSHRTIZARE  FEMERT
BEHSRNAARRERA) BT - AR B
AR R FREEF BT EUMNERE -
EEeME PEBNHHERAENSE
M2 B R S R A R I E B T E
o

BRegf AR BEERNFER s BRI
N REBIERARSHEBEAARFPERZ
BERE - AKERLLFBLRH XN
Free R B B R R T IS R
B AR RIS 2R - AEBEBR T —tF
—AAAEREREMNA EEERIEMH00
K550MK750= A B A - BB EARTH 5
MR EHE 2 K2 -

RE—FHNRAEBFTRERTERBER
REEN—F THERREREARE &
REGERRN—F - ARESEER NN
BERRREENER BEANREERE
B BMEERFRERTERERRE
ARFRRARGRGEER XEAED
EHEEEMNRKERRREENRKL.

AANRASMUBR BEFEMETIHRNIFE
TR |

E:
R

FE —T—tFN\A=1T—H



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

T2 NN EEEBERE

Below are the biographical details of the Directors and the Senior
Management of the Group as at the date of this annual report.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr YEUNG Yung ({f@t), aged 60, was appointed a Director
of the Company in November 1998, and is the Chairman of the
Group, the chairman of the nomination committee and a member
of the remuneration committee of the Board. Dr Yeung is also a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Dr Yeung holds a PhD
Degree in Economics from the China’s Southwest University of
Finance & Economics. Dr Yeung was elected as a director of the
John Hopkins University Center — Nanjing University Centre for
Chinese and American Studies (AR =LA OIEE)
Yeung was the chairman, chief executive officer and pre5|dent
of Brilliance China Automotive Holdings Limited and also the
chairman and president of Shenyang linbei Passenger Vehicle
Manufacture Co., Ltd. from 1992 to 2002. Dr Yeung is a well-
known, highly successful automotive industrialist with over
18 years' experience in the automobile industry as well as a
pioneering international financier from China.

Mr XU Jianguo (& &) , aged 50, was appointed a Director of
the Company in June 2010. He is also the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group. Mr Xu holds a Master's Degree in mechanical
engineering from the Shanghai Jiaotong University in the PRC.
He is currently the vice-president of the global sourcing division
in Hybrid Kinetic Motors Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Mr Xu has 20 years’ experience in the field
of mechanical engineering and automotive industries. He was
one of the key experts who developed Chinese Computer aided
engineering industry in 1990s. Mr Xu has extensive experience
in product development, engineering management, product
planning, purchasing and supplier management. Mr Xu was
involved in multiple projects for certain well-known auto makers
in Asia and Europe and has extensive expertise in automotive
development procedure. Mr Xu has in-depth understanding in the
global automotive industry, in particular the Chinese automotive
industry.
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Biographical Detalls of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr HUI Wing Sang, Wilson (&7 %) , aged 49, was appointed
a Director of the Company in September 2007. He is also the
Deputy Chairman of the Group and one of the authorized
representatives of the Company. Mr Hui holds a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration from the University of Surrey and a
Master’s Degree in Professional Accounting and Information
Systems from the City University of Hong Kong. He has been an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
(HKICS) since 1996 and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA) since 1999. Mr Hui possesses more than
20 years of experience in accounting, finance and corporate
management.

(in

Dr HUANG Chunhua (® &%), aged 53, was appointed
a Director of the Company in June 2010, and is the Deputy
Chairman of the Group. Dr Huang holds a Bachelor of Economics
Degree from the Wuhan University in China, an MBA and PhD
in Marketing (focus on corporate strategy) from the University
of Strathclyde in Scotland. Dr Huang is also the vice-chairman of
Hybrid Kinetic Motors Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Dr Huang had been the vice-chairman of the Company
between November 2002 and October 2007 and its chief financial
officer between August 2000 and September 2004. He is an
independent non-executive director of China Rare Earth Holdings
Limited (listed in Hong Kong). He was among the first generation
China equity analysts and had in-depth knowledge about China’s
automotive and the transport infrastructure sectors, as well as
red chip conglomerates. Dr Huang was a pioneering financier for
China’s first wave of private companies going public in Hong Kong
during 1999 and 2001.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Dr WANG Chuantao (EJIIi®), aged 64, was appointed
a Director of the Company in April 2009, and is the Deputy
Chairman of the Group. He is also the chief executive officer of
Hybrid Kinetic Motors Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. Dr Wang has more than 30 years’ experience in
the field of manufacturing engineering. He is an internationally
recognized leading technologist and business leader in the
development and implementation of advanced stamping using
computer-aided engineering technology and production systems
for digital die manufacturing and stamping for large scale
automotive applications. He had been the Chief Die Engineer
and Technical Fellow in General Motors Corp in Michigan, the
US before he joined the Group. He is armed with interdisciplinary
education, diverse and in-depth knowledge and management
experience in the automotive industry. He received his doctorate
in industrial systems and engineering and his Master’s Degree in
materials science and engineering from The Ohio State University,
Columbus, Ohio, the US and his Bachelor’s Degree and Master’s
Degree in mechanical engineering from Chongging University,
Chongging, the PRC.

Mr LIU Stephen Quan (8IR), aged 62, was appointed
a Director of the Company in October 2007. Mr Liu holds a
Master’s Degree in business, economics and finance from the
China Europe International Business School (CEIBS). Mr Liu has
extensive knowledge and experience in the management of supply
chain business. He has been in the supply chain industry for more
than 20 years and was one of the founders of several industrial
companies and investment companies in China and the US.

Dr ZHU Shengliang (kB R), aged 67, was appointed a
Director of the Company in May 2008. Dr Zhu holds a PhD
Degree in Economics from the Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics. Dr Zhu is currently the chairman of
Ningbo Meilide Consulting Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company. Dr Zhu possesses extensive experience in finance and
corporate management. He took senior managerial roles in several
companies, including Shanghai Shenhua Holdings Co., Ltd., a
PRC-listed company.
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Mr LI Zhengshan (ZEIELL), aged 47, was appointed a Director
of the Company in June 2010. Mr Li holds a Master of Arts Degree
in English language and literature from the Shanghai International
Studies University. He has been the Executive Assistant to Dr
Yeung Yung, the Chairman of the Company since 2003 and
the deputy general manager of the PRC investment division of
the Company. He is currently a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. He is responsible for corporate coordination and
business development of the Group in China.

(in

Mr TING Kwok Kit, Johnny ( TEI##), aged 56, was
appointed a Director of the Company in November 2014, and
is the Company Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. He is also one of the authorized representatives of
the Company. He had previously served as the independent non-
executive Director from 19 November 2007 to 31 May 2011. Mr
Ting holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from the University
of Victoria of Canada and a MBA from the City University of Hong
Kong. Mr Ting is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr Ting
has more than 15 years' experience in accounting, finance and
corporate management.

Mr CHEN Xiao (FEBE) , aged 45, was appointed a Director of
the Company in November 2014. Mr Chen has joined the Group
since April 2008. He has been one of the senior management of
the Group and has been assuming the roles of general manager
or deputy manager or director (as the case may be) of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Chen is primarily responsible for
identifying, evaluating, participating in commercial negotiations
and financial planning for the implementation of potential
projects for the Group in the PRC. Mr Chen was graduated from
the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics ( /&8 4%
AKE)in 1994, majoring in Investment, Economics and Financial
Management (& E L& EE ) . He has extensive experience
in the areas of securities investment, corporate finance, capital
management and merger and acquisition in the PRC.

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr XIA Tingkang, Tim (EER), aged 61, was appointed a
non-executive Director of the Company in June 2010. Dr Xia
holds a Bachelor’'s Degree from Peking University, the PRC, a PhD
from The Ohio State University, the US and a Juris Degree from
the Columbia University School of Law, the US. Dr Xia is currently
a senior partner of an international law firm, Morris Manning
& Martin, LLP, and a registered U.S. patent attorney. Prior to his
legal career, he was a physicist specializing in supercomputing,
large scale computer simulation of complex fluids, super-thin-
films of polymers, and Josephson junction superconducting arrays,
electromagnetic properties of high temperature superconductors,
and physics of granular metals. Dr Xia also counsels clients of
international corporate law.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr WONG Lee Hing (EFJ8), aged 48, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in October
2008. He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee
and a member of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Board. Mr Wong holds a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Manufacturing Engineering and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Business Administration from the City University of Hong Kong.
Mr Wong possesses more than 10 years' experience in the
production industry and information technology management. He
is currently a director of an electronic trading company.

Dr SONG Jian (5R{&) , aged 60, was appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company in May 2010. Dr Song
holds a Doctorate’s and Bachelor’s Degrees in Tsinghua University.
He is currently a professor of Automotive Engineering Department
in Tsinghua University. He is also the Executive Vice-President of
the Tsinghua Automotive Engineering Institute, the Vice-Director
of the National Laboratory in Automotive Safety and Energy
and an expert consultant to the Beijing Government. Dr Song
was formerly the Deputy Dean of the Automotive Engineering
Department at Tsinghua University.
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Dr ZHU Guobin (% B ), aged 55, was appointed a non-
executive Director in July 2010 and re-designated as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 31
December 2012. Dr Zhu holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in history, a
Master’s Degree in history and a Master’s Degree in law from the
Renmin University of China, a Master's degree in law from the
University of Hong Kong and a PhD in law and a HDR (Dipléme
d’Habilitation a Diriger des Recherches) from the University of Aix-
Marseilles in France. Dr Zhu is currently a professor of law in the
School of Law in the City University of Hong Kong. He is a also a
guest professor at Shandong University, Southern-Central China
and Wuhan University School of Law in the PRC. He is a council
member of the Chinese Association of Constitutional Law and a
member of International Association of Constitutional Law and
French Society of Comparative in Legislation, and an associate
member of the International Academy of Comparative Law. Dr
Zhu is also a Director of The Legal Education Fund Limited, and
also a council member of Hubei Province Overseas Friendship
Association.

(in

Mr CHENG Tat Wa (BB &), aged 53, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in August
2012. He is also the chairman of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee of the Board. Mr Cheng holds a Master's Degree in
international accounting from City University of Hong Kong and
a LLB (HONS) from Northumbria University. Mr Cheng is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators of Canada and a member of the Certified
General Accountants Association of Canada. He is also a member
of the Institute of Internal Auditors. Mr Cheng has more than 15
years of extensive experience in the business accounting fields.

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Dr LI Jianyong (E®E), aged 60, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in December
2012. Dr Li holds a Doctoral Degree in economics from the
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics ( 78 g B 42 K
£) . Dr Li obtained the accreditation and qualification of sponsor
representative* (IR B L& A) from the Securities Association
of China (FREIE A€ ) in 2007. Dr Li had served various
senior positions in GF Securities Company Limited ( &3 & % %
B AEBR/AR]) . Dr Li was also appointed as the vice-chairman of
the Securities Association of China in 2007. Dr Li has extensive
experience in the securities and investment field in the PRC. Dr Li
is currently a professor of the Chinese Finance Research Institute of
the Southwestern University of Finance and Economics.

Mr CHAN Sin Hang (BRZ), aged 32, was appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company in December
2012. He is also a member of the audit committee of the Board.
Mr Chan holds a Bachelor’s Degree in business (accounting) from
the Australian Catholic University. Mr Chan is a full member of
the CPA Australia. He is also a member of HKICPA since March
2013. Mr Chan had been an auditor in CPA firms in Hong Kong,
and a chief financial officer and a company secretary of a financial
services company based in Hong Kong and China. Mr Chan has
more than 5 years of experience in the accounting field, and
is currently a chief accountant of a Hong Kong company. He is
currently a director of a PRC consultant company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr Ting Kwok Kit,
Johnny, an executive director of the Company. Please refer to the
biographical details of Mr Ting as disclosed above.

*  For identification purpose only
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Directors’ Report

EETHES

The directors of the Company (the "“Directors” or the “Board”)
are pleased to present to the shareholders their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016 (the “Year").

Jlin

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
AND OTHER INFORMATION

OVERVIEW

During the Year, the principal businesses of the Group included:

o the development of high-tech electric motor vehicles
comprising primarily electric buses, engine and related
battery cells and a new micro turbine generator range
extended electric sedan (¥ ADAHIGIEEEHFE) ; and

o the development and/or production of advanced batteries
materials (including key new energy automobile components
and single and few-layer graphene (@ A £/ ) ).

The Group’s revenue and gross profit from continuing operations
for the Year amounted to approximately HK$15.5 million (2015:
HK$38.0 million) and HK$3.8 million (2015: HK$1.47 million). The
gross profit for the Year was primarily attributable to the sale of
electric buses. The loss attributable to shareholders for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$355.3 million (2015: HK$343.2
million). The loss for the Year was mainly attributable to operating
and administrative expenses.

The operating and administrative expenses from continuing
operations for the Year increased to approximately HK$393.3
million (2015: HK$388.9 million) which consisted of research
and development expenses of HK$34.9 million (2015: HK$38.6
million), operating lease charges in respect of land and buildings
of HK$35.4 million (2015: HK$14.3 million, employee benefit
expense (including wages and salaries, pension costs and other
benefits) of HK$121.4 million (2015: HK$74.4 million) and
depreciation expenses of HK$18.8 million (2015: HK$12.4 million).

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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The loss for the Year from discontinuing operations was nil as
compared to HK$7.3 million in 2015.

Electric Motor Vehicles Business

The Group has endeavoured to become a pioneer in the design,
development and manufacture of zero-emission electric motor
vehicles with advanced technology and tremendous potential
to improve energy efficiency. During the Year, the Group had
operated its electric bus business through the Company’s wholly-
owned subsidiaries in China.

Since 2009, the PRC Government has been granting subsidy to
new energy vehicles. By the end of 2015, a total of RMB33.435
billion had been allocated in the central budget. Spurred by high
subsidies, enterprises of all sizes have stepped up investment
in new energy vehicles and skyrocketed sales of new energy
vehicles in China were recorded. Notwithstanding the impressive
growth, issues such as subsidy fraud, product quality and safety
concerns had prompted the PRC Government to reconstruct its
subsidy policies to ensure that the subsidies are appropriately and
effectively implemented to prevent loopholes and to incentivise
the industry. Since then, the subsidy policies, which impose
minimum technical requirements (including energy efficiency),
have been more robust, and aimed to omit vehicles with outdated
technologies and poor performance and focus on and promote
truly advanced technologies and improved performance. The latest
adjustment in subsidy policies, which will be valid through 2020,
has played a role and will continue to influence the development
of the new energy vehicles in China.

The decrease in sales of electric vehicles during the Year was
mainly attributable to diminished demand due to the cut of fiscal
subsidy for electric vehicles from the Chinese government in 2016.

Nonetheless, the Board remains optimistic that China’s new
energy vehicles market will revive in the near future after the
market adjustment. As the subsidies will mainly be graded
accordingly to the level of technical sophistication, the adjustment
in subsidy policy is overall in favour of electric vehicles with
advanced technologies. The Company pursues innovativeness,
sophistication and excellence in its design and development of
electric vehicles. The Board believes that the implementation of
the reformed measures by the Chinese government for the new
energy vehicles market will ultimately exert positive impact on the
sales of our electric vehicles.
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EETHES

To better cope with the changing national policies for new energy
vehicles and the possible uncertainty brought to the market
with flexibility and adaptability, we had shifted our focus from
identifying possible acquisition targets with manufacturing facility
to selecting well-established processing plant(s) (X T &) for
the manufacture and assembly of electric buses for our electric
bus business. FER = GTEFREEAR (Dandong Huanghai
Automobile Company Limited*), one of the largest builders of city
buses in the PRC, was the major plant engaged by the Group.

Jlin

As the propensity of the latest subsidy policies for new energy
vehicles allows subsidies that are more for manufacturers rather
than end users, the uncertainty has also impeded the development
of our finance-leasing business. Nonetheless, we will continue to
explore the expansion of our finance-leasing business. We will
continue to follow closely the market trends and changes in the
PRC economic conditions and government policies so that we
can adjust our business and risk management policies from time
to time. We will take a prudent approach in assessing the ability
of repayment of our customers or potential customer(s) who are
in need of funds for the purchase of motor vehicles (including
but not limited to electric buses) before extending or continuing
to extend our finance-leasing services, and closely monitor and
exhaust all measures to ensure the recoverability of the finance
granted.

Further, the battery system factory established by & 2% 1E 38 #78¢
TRIAE R G EMK AR A7 (Lianyungang HK New Energy Vehicles
System Integration Company Limited*), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, in EEBLERITHEE R (Lianyungang
Economic and Technology Development Zone*), the Jiangsu
Province, the PRC for the development of battery management
system (which is a core component for use in electric buses) had
been in operation during the Year.

We realise that flexibility is one of the keys to success for any
business. During the Year, the Group had also been keen
on seeking opportunities for collaboration with renowned
organisations with a view to exploring ways to strengthen the
Group's supply chains and enhance its production capacity and
operational flexibility and widen its expertise in such areas which
are considered to be beneficial to the overall development of the
Group’s battery management system.
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In January 2017, the Group established an equity joint venture
(namely Z# K IEEH L RBE AR A E (Anhui Tiankang
HK New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.*)) with Z#KXE ()
f& 15 BB A7 (Anhui Tiankang (Group) Co., Ltd.*) (“Anhui
Tiankang Group”) in Tianchang City, Anhui Province, the PRC to
engage in the development of energy power batteries and related
business and technologies. Anhui Tiankang Group manufactures
a vast diversity of products with wide applications across different
industries (including the new energy vehicles industry) and has
successfully developed and launched the production of LTO
(lithium titanate) cells ( 49 KERELSEE M) since 2013. The synergic
effect from the formation of the equity joint venture with Anhui
Tiankang Group has enhanced the Group’s competitive strength
in the new energy vehicles industry, as well as the development
and sale of our battery management system more efficiently in the
Chinese market. The alliance also alleviates our reliance on single
source of supply.

In addition to our business operation in electric bus for public
transport operators, the Company also commenced the promotion
and development of electric passenger cars for individual
customers.

In June 2016, the Company entered into a collaboration with
Pininfarina S.p.A. (“Pininfarina”), a renowned lItaly automotive
design company, to design and develop a show car H600, a high
end luxury new energy sedan based on micro turbine generator
range extender. The H600 concept new energy vehicle, the
flagship product selected by the Company, is equipped with an
energy recycling system that can greatly improve energy efficiency
and contribute to the mission of sustainable development, and
characterised by stylish surface and dynamic lines. The powertrain
technology, comprising battery, electric motors, electrical controller
and range extender, is the other key feature making H600 stand
out among its competitors. Range limitation is no longer a
problem due to the combination of the Company’s micro turbine
generator range extender and our super battery, empowering
the H600 with ultra-mileage and a long driving range. Our micro
turbine generator range extender can provide electric power for
the motor and the battery anytime, anywhere, without any need
for charging pits and social grids. The Company also subsequently
engaged Pininfarina for the design of two sport utility vehicles
(SUVs) namely K500 and K750.
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In February 2017, the Group entered into a contract with
Pininfarina pursuant to which the parties have agreed to co-
operate with each other in the field of designing, engineering
and creating prototype to commence production for the series
development of a new micro-turbine range-extended electric
sedan.

In March 2017, the Company participated the Geneva Motor
Show in Switzerland for showcased our H600. In April 2017, the
Company showcased the H600, K550 and K750 in the Shanghai
Car Show.

The participation in the international car shows has solicited
interests of a number of potential strategic partners (including
assets fund entities and municipal authorities in the PRC) to
explore possible business or other collaborations with the Group.
The Company will update its shareholders of these possible
business or other collaborations currently under negotiations as
and when appropriate in accordance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). These collaborations, if materialised, are
conducive to the development of the Group’s high-tech electric
motor vehicles business and its penetration into other provinces of
China with untapped potential.

The cooperation with Pininfarina is one of the Group's strategic
moves to open up its business into the global luxury car market,
and make its name known to more international automobile
manufacturers and customers.

For the Year, the revenue and the loss of this segment were

approximately HK$15.5 million (2015: HK$38.0) and HK$142.4
million (2015: HK$34.3 million).
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Advanced Batteries Materials

The Group has been engaging in the promotion of a new energy
project (which involved the development of key new energy
automobile components) (the “New Energy Project”) through
HEBEEHNERABR AR (Hybrid Kinetic (Lianyuangang)
New Energy Limited, Inc.*) (the “Project Company”), in which
the Company holds approximately 77.78% of its total registered
capital of US$27,000,000.

The major new energy automobile component under the New
Energy Project comprises single and few-layer graphene (/g
F 24 ) . Graphene is an ideal material for super batteries (2
MEH) , electronic traction motor (E# ) and power electronic
system (E 1 Z#4%) for use in electric vehicles.

In addition, the Project Company and HK Graphene Technology
Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company in the U.S., have been
cooperating in the research and development of graphene super
batteries (/A 2% B H FE i) (which possess relatively higher
energy and power density and long charge and discharge life
cycle, have a charging rate which is much faster than normal
batteries and can function normally under severe weather
condition).

The research and development of the application of graphene for
super batteries, electronic traction motor and power electronic
system are still underway. The Project Company will commence
the application of graphene in the core components in electric
vehicles when the technology is mature, which will then be
expected to create a source of revenue for the Group.

For the Year, the revenue of this segment was nil (2015: Nil) and
the loss was HK$5.0 million (2015: HK$27.1 million).

PROSPECTS

The Company has a long-term commitment to the global
automobile industry.

We believe that the demand for high-tech, clean and sustainable
transportation will continue to grow under the global trend
of urbanisation and proactive impositions of environmental
regulations.
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The luxury car segment is seen as the most dynamic and major
contributor of revenue in the luxury goods market. There has been
an upward trend in the demand for luxury cars, and provide ample
room for growth. This is even the case for the Chinese luxury car
market. The increasingly affluent economy, the rising disposable
income, the changing demographics and China’s greentech
policies have all been working in favour of the Chinese market.

Jlin

We hope the Group's cooperation with Pininfarina, which shares
our philosophy to pursue innovativeness and excellence, can
bring the global automobile industry and car driving to a new
dimension.

In March 2017, the Company and Beijing WKW Automotive Parts
Co., Ltd.* ("WKW Equity”) (At RERELTEZ B4R H AR
‘A F]) entered into a strategic alliance memorandum to record
the parties’ strategic cooperation intention to collaborate in the
areas of electric motors, electrical controller and range extender,
as wall as the research, development and commercial production
of new energy vehicles (including the H600) and subsequent
products production, including but not limited to the setting up
of research and production bases initially proposed to be in China,
North America and Europe. The Board expects the cooperation
with WKW Equity will reap greater synergies, as the parties have
their respective required expertise and solid experience in the
field of automobile and new energy business. Looking forward,
the Board believes that the cooperation will enable the Group to
(i) create a platform for the promotion of clean energy and take
advantage of the opportunity emerged from the PRC's 13th Five-
Year Plan regarding the energy conservation and environmental
protection; (ii) strengthen its own production capacity and ability
in the design, research and development of electric motor vehicles;
and (iii) expand its business scale as well as market share in the
automobile industry.

The Company and WKW Equity have already formed a working
group to conduct research on new power batteries through a joint
venture. The collaboration is expected to further complement the
strength of each other in the respective resource and technology
advantages and achieve a more comprehensive strategic
cooperation for the sustainable development of clean energy
industry.
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We will step up our efforts to explore investment opportunities
and consider different options to achieve a higher level of vertical
integration of our electric motor vehicles business. This business
goal, if achieved successfully, is expected to improve supply chain
co-ordination, as well as enhance costs and quality control. These,
in turn, are expected to bring a positive impact on the Group's
operation, performance and competitiveness in the automobile
market place.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL

On 28 June 2016 (US time), the Group entered into a conditional
stock issuance and purchase agreement (the “SPA") with
UQM Technologies, Inc., ("“UQM") in relation to the proposed
investment in UQM through the subscription of an aggregate
of 66,500,000 new shares of UQM common stock (the
“Subscription”) at the total subscription price US$47,880,000
(representing US$0.72 each) subject to and upon the terms and
conditions contained in the SPA. The Subscription, if materialised,
would constitute a very substantial acquisition of the Company
under the Listing Rules. As certain condition(s) precedent to
completion of the Subscription was not fulfilled pursuant to
the terms of the SPA, the respective board of directors of
the Company and UQM determined not to proceed with the
Subscription and terminated the SPA on 26 December 2016.
There were no penalties to UQM or the Group, and there was
no adverse impact on the operation or otherwise of the Group,
as a result of the termination of the SPA. Please refer to the
announcements dated 30 June 2016 and 27 September 2016, the
circular dated 23 November 2016 and the announcement dated
28 December 2016 for further details of the Subscription under
the SPA and its termination.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have material
acquisition or disposal of assets and any future plans for material
investment or capital assets during the Year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Jlin

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the total equity of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$1,861.4 million (31 December 2015:
HK$2,280 million).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2016 measured
in terms of total liabilities divided by shareholders’ equity was
approximately 2.61% (31 December 2015: 1.83%).

As at 31 December 2016, net current assets of the Group
were approximately HK$1,635.1 million (31 December
2015: HK$2119.1 million). The pledged bank deposits were
approximately HK$2.0 million (31 December 2015: HK$1.6
million). The cash and cash equivalents amounted to HK$695.3
million (31 December 2015: HK$999.8 million).

The short-term investments was nil (31 December 2015: HK$84.0
million) and structured bank deposits was nil (31 December
2015: HK$420.2 million). The Group did not have outstanding
borrowings (31 December 2015: HK$196,000).

PLEDGE OF THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had pledged its bank
deposits of HK$2.0 million (31 December 2015: HK$1.6 million) to
the Group's bankers to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

During the Year, almost all of the income and expenditure of the
Group were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollar and/or
United States dollars, and the Group had no significant exposure
to foreign exchange fluctuations and therefore, had not taken any
financial instruments for hedging purpose.
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audit committee of the Company had reviewed and discussed
with the management of the Company regarding the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out in the annual report on page
140. The summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Directors’
report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr Yeung Yung (Chairman)

Mr Xu Jianguo (appointed as Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 3 February 2016)

Mr Hui Wing Sang, Wilson (Deputy Chairman)

Dr Huang Chunhua (Deputy Chairman)

Dr Wang Chuantao (re-designated as Deputy Chairman
with effect from 3 February 2016)

Mr Liu Stephen Quan

Dr Zhu Shengliang

Mr Li Zhengshan

Mr Ting Kwok Kit, Johnny

Mr Chen Xiao

Non-executive Director:
Dr Xia Tingkang, Tim

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr Wong Lee Hing

Dr Song Jian

Dr Zhu Guobin

Mr Cheng Tat Wa

Dr Li Jianyong

Mr Chan Sin Hang
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Jlin

As at 31 December 2016, so far as is known to any director(s) or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
the directors or chief executive of the Company) were recorded
in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), or as otherwise
notified to the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested
or deemed to be interested in 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company:

FERRRFLAFERFRZER

R-ZB-—RF+-_A=+—R #EXRAE
MEFRHERSTBRAEMA TIAL (TR
BARRBEEFLARSTBRAB)RARFS%
FALEZ B BEITRAPHEIWRBER AR
NEIREBES LB EGRIIFEIB6HEETFZE
A FrRsk e RTTHEARB ZHEL
B

Number
Name Capacity/Nature of interest of Shares Percentage
Ma BB 57 E#EHYE Bine B BoL
(Note 4)
(BisE4)
Sun East LLC Beneficial owner (Note 1) 2,673,071,189 13.14%
EmlEAA (W:E1)
Yeung Yung Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 2,673,071,189 13.14%
P&k S EEER (HF2)
Beneficial owner (Note 3) 68,140,000 0.34%
EmEAA (:E3)
2,741,211,189 13.48%
Notes: B 5T

1. Sun East LLC is owned as to 35% by Dr Yeung Yung (shared
commonly with his spouse under the laws of California, the US) and
65% by Mr Ma Manwai (alias Ma Manwai, Philip) and Mr Jimmy
Wang (alias Wang Jian) as co-trustees for certain trusts established
for the benefit of the children of Dr Yeung Yung on 30 December
2002. Dr Yeung Yung (as well as his spouse) was deemed to be
interested in these 2,673,071,189 Shares held by Sun East LLC
under Part XV of the SFO.

2. These 2,673,071,189 Shares are the same parcel of Shares held
by Sun East LLC in which Dr Yeung Yung (as well as his spouse) is
deemed interested under Part XV of the SFO.

3. These 68,140,000 Shares are directly held by Dr Yeung Yung, in
which his spouse is deemed interested under Part XV of the SFO.

4. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
20,337,872,747 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2016 and does
not take into account any Shares which may fall to be allotted and
issued upon exercise of any subscription rights attaching to any
share options granted by the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than those Directors
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions” below, had registered an
interest or short positions in the share capital or underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded under Section
336 of SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

Directors’ Report
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As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of R-ZE—XE+-_A=+—H ARAIES

the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV

of the SFO) as recorded in the register kept by the Company  352{&74A&R

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

B R HHIRE

RESITBRABRAR B S E AR EE
(EERBEZMERIIE
MR EFTRAREREZ MR GRS
ARFE 2 FLMARE  HER
B LR RIS T PrE E T AE T
SRIBTTHEARREREE

XVER) 2 Betn ~ 18

“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities HAXZZFABEIRAT ([BZFT]) 22 MK
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 B u1 T :

to the Listing Rules were as follow:

(1)

Long positions in the ordinary share (each a

“Share”) of HK$0.10 each in the Company

Name of Director

Number of Shares

(1) RAXFEZREEC.I0BTEER

(BER-—RIRH 2HR

Capacity/Nature of interest

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

EENR B & H S5/ EaKE BESVESET
(Note 1)
(FIET)
Yeung Yung 2,673,071,189 Interest of Controlled corporation
P aEs (Note 2)  S¥Ex[E R
(P#E2)
68,140,000 Beneficial owner
ExnEEA
2,741,211,189 13.48%
(Note 3)
(PFF7E3)
Xu Jianguo 30,000,000 Beneficial owner 0.15%
R ExnEEA
Hui Wing Sang, Wilson 2,904,000 Beneficial owner 0.01%
KA EnBEA
Huang Chunhua 65,000,000 Beneficial owner 0.32%
EhE ExnEEA
Wang Chuantao 30,000,000 Beneficial owner 0.15%
NE EnBEA
Liu Stephen Quan 281,760,000 Founder of trust
2% (Note 4) Interest of children under 18
(fizF4)  fEsEElBA
RIWI8HR T2 Em
10,000,000 Beneficial owner
EaEEA
291,760,000 1.43%

EEEEBRAR ZE—<FFR 23
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Name of Director

Number of Shares

Capacity/Nature of interest

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

EEnA B in & H B/ EEHE REgROTSL
(Note 1)
(FEET)

Zhu Shengliang 22,043,883 Beneficial owner 0.11%

KBR EnEEA

Li Zhengshan 26,270,000 Beneficial owner 0.13%

FIEL ExEEA

Ting Kwok Kit, Johnny 3,000,000 Beneficial owner 0.01%

T B ExBEEA

Chen Xiao 25,000,000 Beneficial owner 0.12%

PR EnEEA

Cheng Tat Wa 1,300,000  Beneficial owner 0.006%

ifpe o ExEEA

Chan Sin Hang 500,000 Beneficial owner 0.002%

fR= ExBEEA

Notes: P 5E -

(1) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 1) HRaEsLER-_Z—XRE+_A

20,337,872,747 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2016 and
did not take into account any Shares which may fall to be
allotted and issued upon exercise of any subscription rights
attaching to any share options granted by the Company.

(2)  These Shares are held by Sun East LLC. Sun East LLC is a (2)

limited liability company incorporated in California, the US,
which is owned as to (i) 35% by Dr Yeung Yung (shared
commonly with his spouse under the laws of California, the
UsS) and (i) 65% by Mr Ma Manwai (alias Ma Manwai, Philip)
and Mr Jimmy Wang (alias Wang Jian) as co-trustees for
certain trusts established for the benefit of the children of Dr
Yeung Yung on 30 December 2002. Dr Yeung Yung (as well
as his spouse) was deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Sun East LLC by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

(3)  The spouse of Dr Yeung Yung is deemed to be interested in (3)
the Shares beneficially held by Dr Yeung Yung by virtue of
Part XV of the SFO.

(4)  These Shares were indirectly owned by certain trusts of which (4)
Mr Liu Stephen Quan were the founder. The children of
Mr Liu were eligible beneficiaries of the trusts. Mr Liu was
deemed to be interested in these Shares by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO.
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E R
Interests in share options of the Company (2 RAQTBREZER
Number of
underlying
Shares
subject to  Approximate
outstanding  percentage of
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price Options  shareholding
R ITE
e
FRERZ 13335
EERE gHEH A fTERR fiER HHEERBHE AL
(HK$) (Note)
(B7T) (BE)
Xu Jianguo 20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 50,000,000 0.25%
G342 ZZ-MmE+—AZ+H 19 November 2024
Z-mET-AZTHE
“ZWFE+—-A+TNBE
Hui Wing Sang, 6 February 2008 6 February 2008 to 0.114 27,000,000
Wilson T N\FZARA 5 February 2018
KA i N =
—-\&#-R&A
6 September 2013 6 September 2013 to 0.108 60,000,000
ZT-=FNAKH 5 September 2023
“T-=FNABE
“ZZ=FNAAA
20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 50,000,000
ZT-ME+—HZTH 19 November 2024
Z-mET-AZTHE
“F-mEF-F AR
137,000,000 0.67%
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Number of
underlying
Shares
subjectto  Approximate
outstanding percentage of
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price Options  shareholding
fRITE
{2
RERZ R
EERE B A% AT ERR TR HREIHE [=:1:4
(HK9) (Note)
(B) CiEd)
Huang Chunhua 20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 50,000,000 0.25%
HEE —mE+—A=+H 19 November 2024
—mE+—-AZTHE
_7_E¢+ A+hBE
Wang Chuantao 20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 30,000,000 0.15%
JIE “E-PE+-AZtH 19 November 2024
—E+—HA=+HZ
_7_E¢+ AthBE
Liu Stephen Quan 6 September 2013 6 September 2013 to 0.108 10,000,000 0.05%
2R ZZE-=FNARA 5 September 2023
ZZ-=§¥NARAZE
ZZZ=FNARA
Zhu Shengliang 6 September 2013 6 September 2013 to 0.108 20,000,000
KBR ZE-ZFNARA 5 September 2023
“E-=FNARAZE
ZZZ=FNARA
20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 20,000,000
—mFE+—A=+H 19 November 2024
—mFE+—-A=Z1+HZ
fjfﬂi+ At+hAE
40,000,000 0.20%
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.Mn

outstanding

=‘/N\d1§£i:§$;

Number of
underlying
Shares
subjectto  Approximate

percentage of

Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price Options  shareholding
RETE
i {2
FRiSERZ RS
EENR #iHAH A {T{E R fTEE HRRKSE BSOS
(HKS) (Note)
(&) i3
Li Zhengshan 6 September 2013 6 September 2013 to 0.108 20,000,000
FIEW “E-=FNAXA 5 September 2023
—“T-=FNARAE
“Z-=FAAARA
20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 50,000,000
“Z-ME+—A=FH 19 November 2024
“T-pmFE+—-A=Z+HZE
—E-mF+-A+AR
70,000,000 0.34%
Ting Kwok Kit, 6 September 2013 6 September 2013 to 0.108 32,000,000
Johnny ZE-=FNARA 5 September 2023
T{%@ 77' _ﬁﬂﬂx\ﬁi
=% NAAA
20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 25,000,000
“E-NF+—A=1+H 19 November 2024
“EZ-ME+—-A=-F+HZE
“ZZRE+—-A+NA
57,000,000 0.28%
Chen Xiao 20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 50,000,000 0.25%
= “ZT-WF+—AZFH 19 November 2024
“T-pmFE+—-A=Z+HZE
“T-mFE+—A+ANB
Xia Tingkang, Tim 6 September 2013 6 September 2013 to 0.108 10,000,000
BEREE ZT-=FNAKH 5 September 2023
“T-=FNA BZE
“T-=FHAEH
20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 10,000,000
“T-WE+—AZFH 19 November 2024
—MmE+—A=F+HZ
_7_E¢+ AThB
20,000,000 0.10%
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Number of
underlying
Shares
subjectto  Approximate
outstanding percentage of
Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price Options  shareholding
HRTE
Rk
RERZ B
EERR RHAH AT{TERARE fIERE HRERHHE Bal
(HK$) (Note)
(B) (BaE)
Wong Lee Hing 29 July 2014 29 July 2014 to 0.1136 7,000,000
FHE —Z-mFELAZTNE 28 July 2024
“MELAZTHARE
“ECNFEAZT\H
20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 2,000,000
—T-mEt-AZtH 19 November 2024
—E+—HA=+HZ
_7_E¢+ AthBE
9,000,000 0.04%
Song Jian 6 September 2013 6 September 2013 to 0.108 10,000,000
PN —E-ZFNARH 5 September 2023
“Z-=§¥NARAZE
ZZZ=%¥NARA
20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 10,000,000
—mE+—-AZ+H 19 November 2024
—NE+—A=+HZ
,77E¢+ At+NA
20,000,000 0.10%
Zhu Guobin 6 September 2013 6 September 2013 to 0.108 10,000,000
KEDH —T-=FNARH 5 September 2023
ZE-=§¥NARAE
“E-=FNARA
20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 10,000,000
—T-mEt-AZtH 19 November 2024
—E+—HA=+HZ
_7_E¢+ AthBE
20,000,000 0.10%
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o=

.Mn

outstanding

= & :I:& H= i
Number of
underlying
Shares

subjectto  Approximate

percentage of

Name of Director Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price Options  shareholding
A RITE
AR e
IR i3 2080
EERE wHEH AT {EHR fiER #HHEERKHE BRL
(HKS) (Note)
(B7) (BE)
Cheng Tat Wa 20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 5,000,000 0.02%
mWiEE “Z-WEF—AZ+H 19 November 2024
“T-NF+—-A-F+HE
“RCWFE+—-A+AR
Li Jianyong 6 September 2013 6 September 2013 to 0.108 10,000,000
FEB “E-=FNAXA 5 September 2023
ZT-ZFNARAE
ZZZ=ENARA
20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 20,000,000
ZE-MF+—A=1+H 19 November 2024
“T-NF+—-A-F+HE
“RCWFE+—-A+AR
30,000,000 0.15%
Chan Sin Hang 20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 0.201 4,500,000 0.02%
BEE —mE+—A=+H 19 November 2024
—NE+—AZ+HBZE
_7—E$+ At+hAE
Note: Bt

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
20,337,872,747 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as at 31 December
2016.
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EEEWmEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME BB ET 8

Jlin

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”) ARBRZTEZT=F A+ -HRHN—IBERE
on 12 June 2003, which was expired on 11 June 2013. The share ~ BX#EFEI ([E:1E1]) - EsfEIRN T —=4F
option scheme currently in force was adopted on 13 June 2013 NA+— RBE|H-RIE AR 2 B EE )
(the “Scheme”) pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the IRIEAAGTBRREA-ZE—=F <A +=0E
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting of T2 ARABREFEFAE BBy —H LR

the Company held on 13 June 2013. RBEBRERZZE—=F AT+ =AEM([&
gll)-
The following share options were outstanding during the period A TNERER -—Z— X F—HA—HBZ+_-A
from 1 January to 31 December 2016 (the “Period”): =+— B[ (A MART6E:
Share options
lapsed/
Name/ Reclassification Share cancelled Share As at
Category of As at during Options during Options 31 December Dateof  Exercise  Exercise
Participant 1 January 2016 the Period Granted the Period Exercised 2016 Grant Price Period
o]
RZS-RE M 3.7 Bl RZS-R"%F
SHENE /B -B-H ENAE oEtmRE EHRRE Hk#E +-R=+-RH RHAH fTEE  TEM
Director
-3
Xu Jianguo 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
=t Mizts MizEs MizEs
Hui Wing Sang, Wilson 27,000,000 - - - - 27,000,000 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1
FKE Wiz i il
60,000,000 - - - - 60,000,000 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3
M3 M3 MizE3
50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5

s WES  WES

Huang Chunhua 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
ERE HizEs Hizts Hizts
Wang Chuantao 30,000,000 - - - - 30,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
TE Mizts MizEs HizEs
Liu Stephen Quan 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3
A% i I < B i
Zhu Shengliang 20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3
KBR M3 M3 MizE3

20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5

MEs  WES  WES

Li Zhengshan 20,000,000 - - - - 20000000 Note3  Note3  Note3
FIEU MEs  ME W
50,000,000 - - - - 50000000 Note5  Note5  Note5

s WES  WES

Ting Kwok Kit, Johnny 32,000,000 - - - - 32,000,000 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3
TE% M3 M3 MizE3
25,000,000 - - - - 25,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5

s WES  WES

30 Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016



Directors’ Report
EFEWE

Share options
lapsed/
Name/ Redlassification Share cancelled Share As at
Category of As at during Options during Options 31 December Dateof  Exercise  Exercise
Participant 1 January 2016 the Period Granted the Period Exercised 2016 Grant Price Period
o)
RZB-RE il B&%/ BT RZB-RE
BEENE/AH -A-8 ENSR  CREMER  HEERA RER  +ZASt-R  BHEW AER e
Chen Xiao 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
[ fEs WS WS
Xia Tingkang, Tim 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3
BER M3 M3 M3
10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
HiEES MiEES HiEs
Wong Lee Hing 7,000,000 - - - - 7,000,000 Note 4 Note 4 Note 4
IHE R7) Wizt Hizta
2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
Bits Bits ftits
Song Jian 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3
g M3 M3 M3
10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
iE#) MiES HiEs
Zhu Guobin 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3
RER B3 B3 i3
10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
Bits Hits ftits
Cheng Tat Wa 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
e MiEEs MiEES HiEs
Li Jianyong 10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3
FRE B3 B3 i3
20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
Bists Hits ftits
Chan Sin Hang 4,500,000 - - - - 4,500,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
REE MiES MiEES HiEts
Sub Total: 602,500,000 - - - - 602,500,000
It
Employee (in aggregate) 17,000,000 - - - - 17,000,000 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1
8 (A3 Mz Wi i
110,500,000 - - - (6,000,000) 104,500,000 Note 3 Note 3 Note 3
M3 W3 W3
284,000,000 - - - (6,000,000) 278,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
MiES MiEES Mizs
- - 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000 Note 8 Note 8 Note 8
Mz M8 Hizts
Sub Total: 411,500,000 - 25,000,000 - (12,000,000) 424,500,000
Nt
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Share options
lapsed/
Name/ Reclassification Share cancelled Share As at
Category of As at during Options during Options 31 December Dateof  Exercise  Exercise
Participant 1 January 2016 the Period Granted the Period Exercised 2016 Grant Price Period
bila]
RZE-RE i) B&N/ BfilE RIB-R%F
SRENSL/HH -B-H ENAE BEHmRE EHRRE WRE +ZASt-B RHBY TER  TEH
Other eligible persons: 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000 Note 1 Note 1 Note 1
(in aggregate) WiEE Wi ik
w%ww : 196,000,000 - - - - 196000000  Note3  Note3  Note3
(&3t) M3 M3 M3
14,000,000 - - - - 14,000,000 Note 4 Note 4 Note 4
fia M4 M4
214,000,000 - - - - 214,000,000 Note 5 Note 5 Note 5
ftis MRS WS
400,000,000 - - - - 400,000,000 Note 6 Note 6 Note 6
Mie W6 fidte
- - 200,000,000 - - 200,000,000 Note 7 Note 7 Note 7
M7 MET O W
Sub Total ; 829,000,000 - 200,000,000 - - 1,029,000,000
gt
Total : 1,843,000,000 - 225,000,000 - (12,000,000) 2,056,000,000
@it
Notes: PiaE

1.

These share options were granted on 6 February 2008 and are
exercisable at a subscription price of HK$0.114 per share at any
time during the period of 10 years from 6 February 2008 to 5
February 2018.

These share options were granted on 4 December 2012 and
exercisable at a subscription price of HK$0.12 per share at any time
during the period of 8 years from 1 January 2015 to 3 December
2022.

These share options were granted on 6 September 2013 and are
exercisable at a subscription price of HK$0.108 per share at any
time during the period of 10 years from 6 September 2013 to 5
September 2023.

These share options were granted on 29 July 2014 and are
exercisable at a subscription price of HK$0.1136 per share at any
time during the period of 10 years from 29 July 2014 to 28 July
2024.

These share options were granted on 20 November 2014 and are
exercisable at a subscription price of HK$0.201 per share at any
time during the period of 10 years from 20 November 2014 to 19
November 2024.

These share options were granted on 14 July 2015 and are
exercisable at a subscription price of HK$0.395 per share at any
time during the period of 10 years from 14 July 2015 to 13 July
2025.

These share options were granted on 29 November 2016 and are
exercisable at a subscription price of HK$0.24 per share at any
time during the period of 3 years from 29 November 2016 to
28 November 2019. The closing price of the Shares on the day
immediately before the date of grant (28 November 2016) was
HK$0.197 per share.

These share options were granted on 09 December 2016 and are
exercisable at a subscription price of HK$0.228 per share at any
time during the period of 10 years from 09 December 2016 to
08 December 2026. The closing price of the Shares on the day
immediately before the date of grant (08 December 2016) was
HK$0.227 per share.
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The principal terms of the Scheme, which is currently in force, are  IRFE AR Z 51812 T B IEREMT :

briefly summarised below:

1) Purpose of the Scheme
FFEZ A

2)  Participants of the Scheme

tElzsmE

As incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group

ERAERSEEUAKEFL BB SELERR 2 5B & 2R

a)

any employee (whether full time or part time, including any
executive Director but excluding any non-executive Director) of
the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any entity (the “Invested
Entity”) in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest;

AR BAEFIME A RS ASEEERE R RRFAEAREL
T ER ([REER]) ZEMES (TwmEBIERE  BEE
AMITEFETBREERERITES)

any non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors), any of the subsidiaries of the Company or any Invested
Entity;

RRBHEMIMBARSERAREER ZEMFENTER (B
BIYFNTEE)

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;
AREBERMMKERRREMAIRE B 2 EFE SRR HIE
=R

any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

AEESEMAMEEERZERERS:

any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any Invested Entity;
REAEESEMAIREERBIREHEAR ABEEMBRME T
AIATHEL:

any shareholder of any member of the Group other than the
Company or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
AREBEMRKE AT (ARBRIN) KA AAIRE B 2 ERIAR
R AKEERKE RARISEAAIREBERBMBEITEMESZ
ESCESEEPNE

any advisor (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and
AREBEAKERARHEAAIREER 2 XBNRBEERTEM
HEZERER (TmARRIEMER)dERAE K

EEEEBRAR —E—<EFFR
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3) Maximum number of shares
available for issue under
the Scheme

AR TAERTRO&RSHAE

4)  Maximum entitlement of each
participant under the Scheme

AERTER2EEZRSEE

5)  The period within which the
shares must be taken up
under an option

R RE IR T It 2 IR

6)  The minimum period for
which an option must be
held before it can be exercised
BRER] TITERIZARA &R
HAFE

7)  The amount payable on
application or acceptance of
the option and the period
within which payments or
calls must or may be made
or loans for such purposes
must be repaid

MBI ENBEREREMNZ
RIE - LA KBS Al AN IR B
EHREREERLBAZE
2 B

8)  The basis of determining the
exercise price

TEEZEEESE

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016

h)  any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of the
Group.

BERLEME XRHBEIHMEBREMEAEENERE NI
RAIEH K ATRE(E L B BBV A 4B RIS AR B 2 B 3 o

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme (and any other share option scheme adopted by the Group) must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in
issue from time to time.

et 8l (RASERRAZ EAEMEREE) TEERE 2 #1T
E?I\H MARITEBREETERAIZET I ROESEE & /TG

BARR RN EE BITIRAR Z230% ©

In any 12-month period, shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
AER+ @A ZBETEBaE BTRN Z21%

The Board may in its absolute discretion determine save that such period
shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of grant

EEe2RRBREZIR  EZHRTSERNE L BIES +F
®Em

Unless otherwise determined by the Board, no minimum period

BRIFEFEREET &AL EREHE

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall inform the Company
together with HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant within 21 days
from the date of offer

REMBRER  ARAAREER TEHREA T —RAMEAR
AW MUETERKRERE

The exercise price is determined by the Board and being not less than the
highest of:
TEBEREEGRERTABRUT=ZE2&a%E



The remaining life of the Scheme
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the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of shares
on the date of offer for grant which must be a business day; or
%193)3%%%*%&1 BE(AREER)EBIME R REBRABM
ET—FAEFROHEBEB2WHE 3

the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in one or more board
lots of shares for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of offer for grant which must be a business day; or

PRt b0 B H R Txtlj HE (BERE¥B)AIAEEXAERIMAE
HBRERMBEET - FREFRODEECBRMEZ FHE:
o

the nominal value thereof

Betn 2 EE

The Scheme remains in force until 12 June 2023

AER-EAREE T =FAATZARL

EEEEBRAR —E—<EFFR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Jlin

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or an entity
connected with a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, no
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employer
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensations.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Company’s business were entered into or existed
during the Year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
governing securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors,
after specific enquiries by the Company, had confirmed to the
Company their compliance with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct during the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Turnover

The percentage of the Group’s revenue (included continuing and
discontinued operations) attributable to the five largest customers
for the Year is as follows:

50%
93%

— The largest customer
— The five largest customers in aggregate

Purchases

The percentage of the Group’s purchase (included continuing and
discontinued operations) attributable to the five largest suppliers
for the Year is as follows:

78%
91%

— The largest supplier
— The five largest suppliers in aggregate

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who to the
Directors’ knowledge was interested in or owned more than 5
per cent. of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the
customers or suppliers referred to above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

None of the “Related Party Transactions” as disclosed in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements for the Year constituted
discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing
Rules.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company during the Year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 71 and note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to approximately
HK$Nil (2015: HK$NIil).
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ANALYSIS OF BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Jlin

The particulars of the Group's borrowings as at the end of
the Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements. No interest was capitalised by the Group during the
Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital of the Company are shown in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the Year and the Company did not declare any interim dividend
during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company had maintained the prescribed level of public float as
required under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the
date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to ensure better transparency and
protection of the interests of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The
Company wishes to highlight that it will continue to devote efforts
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and
the transparency and accountability of all operations.

Throughout the Year, the Company had adopted and complied

with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

According to the Company’s bye-laws, each director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities (to the extent allowed by the
Companies Act, 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) which such
director may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
director’s duties or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has also arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The automotive industry is one of the most environmental aware
business sectors. To preserve the environment, the Group strives
to devise and adopt environmental friendly strategies, policies
and measures (through the concepts of reducing, re-using and re-
cycling) to achieve sustainable development, and is committed
to conducting its activities in a manner consistent with the above
determination.

These strategies, policies and measures include but not limited
to (i) using energy-efficient lighting and appliances, recycling
of office supplies and other materials in the workplace to the
extent practicable, (ii) working or partnering with renowned
academics and strategic business partners in the research and
development of both technologically advanced and energy saving
auto-components and materials (such as single and few-layer
graphene, battery materials, super batteries and electric control
systems) for the electric buses and other vehicles designed and/or
manufactured by the Group, (iii) setting up or using energy-saving
and technologically advanced establishments and facilities for the
manufacture of new energy products for auto-use. For instance,
one of our major strategic partners, Dandong Automobile, was
accredited certification to 1SO 14001 (which is an international
standard showing that the entity has established environment
management system (EMS) in developing and implementing
policies and objectives from, among others, legal and
environmental perspectives), (iv) setting criteria for the selection
of our suppliers and manufacturers which must be reliable,
financially sound, environmental conscientious and are keen to
adopt sustainability measures in their business and operation and
(v) educating and reinforcing environmental protection awareness
among employees of the Group.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Jm

The Board recognizes the importance of the Company to
act responsibly and due compliance with the laws, rules and
regulations applicable to the businesses operated by the Group.
The Group has employed suitable personnel and engaged
appropriate professional advisers to ensure that it stays abreast
with legislative changes and industry developments and its
operations are being run in line with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

During the Year, the Company had complied with, and the Board
is not aware of any violation of, the applicable laws, rules and
regulations that had a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group in any material respects.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company is committed to upholding a positive image for
the Group and building trust and loyalty among its stakeholders,
employees, customers, suppliers and other business partners. The
Board considers that the Company has all along maintained good
relationships with its stakeholders, employees, key customers,
suppliers and other business partners, which are beneficial to the
long-term development of the Group.

BOARD’'S VIEWS ON 2016 AUDITOR'S
OPINION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
were audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA LIMITED (the “Auditor”).
The Auditor expressed qualified auditor’s opinion (the “2016
Auditor’s Opinion”) on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year, the details of which are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report. Please refer
to the Company’'s announcement issued on 31 August 2017
on the preliminary financial results of the Group for the Year for
the Board's views on the 2016 Auditor’s Opinion (which are also
reproduced below).

1) Prepayment to suppliers

The Board considers that the Company had provided all
the documents to the extent that they are available to
the Company to the Company’s auditor to facilitate them
to ascertain the carrying amount of the prepayment to
suppliers and the Group's assessment on its recoverability.
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The prepayment is mainly related to a deposit (the
“Deposit”) made by the Group pursuant to a supply
agreement dated 20 March 2015 (the “Supply Agreement”)
entered into between Billion Energy Holdings Limited
(“Billion Energy”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and XALT Energy MI, LLC (“XALT MI") for the
supply of battery cells by XALT Ml to Billion Energy. Under
the Supply Agreement, the Deposit is agreed to be used to
set off any invoiced amount of the order(s) of battery cells
placed by the Group with XALT MI. Based on the records of
the Group, the carrying amount of the remaining Deposit
amounted to approximately HK$333,814,000 as at 31
December 2015 and 2016.

As disclosed in the Company’'s announcement dated 26
March 2017 (the “Litigation Announcement”), the Supply
Agreement is the core of a civil lawsuit (the “Lawsuit”)
commenced by Townsend Ventures LLC, XALT Energy
LLC and XALT MI (collectively, “XALT"”) in the United
States District Court for the Northern District of Maryland
in Baltimore. Due to the Lawsuit, XALT had not been
cooperative in rendering assistance and providing to the
Group, among others, the audit confirmation required
by the Company’s auditor to ascertain the balance of the
prepayment made by the Group and/or the liabilities (if any)
due from the Group to XALT Ml on their books and records.
In the circumstances and given that the Lawsuit is ongoing,
no trial date has yet been set for the Lawsuit and its
outcome may not be predictable or forthcoming based on
its current development, the Company’s auditor, therefore,
took a prudent approach regarding the prepayment and
qualified its auditor’s report in that regard.

As disclosed in the Litigation Announcement, having
considered the alleged claims of XALT as pleaded in the
Lawsuit and consulted the Group's legal advisers, the Board
believes the Group’s position is meritorious. The Group has
instructed its legal advisers to defend the Lawsuit vigorously.
The Board is optimistic about the strengths of the Group's
case regarding the Lawsuit and considers it has insignificant
effect on the business, operations or financial position of
the Group until the matters in dispute are resolved by the
parties or finally adjudicated by legal proceedings. Since the
Litigation Announcement, there have been no significant
developments in the Lawsuit. The United States District
Court has not set a hearing date.
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2)

Given that the Lawsuit is still in a preliminary stage and
has not gone into substantive pleading stage, the Board is
of the views that (i) it is premature to determine the non-
recoverability of the prepayment to XALT, (i) there is no
evidence indicating that the amount of the prepayment to
suppliers as at 31 December 2015 and 2016 as recorded by
the Group was not fairly stated on the Group’s books and
records; and (iii) no contingent liabilities have arisen or there
is no basis for any contingent liabilities to be recognised for
the Lawsuit based on its current development.

Inventories

The inventories are mainly related to the battery cells
ordered by the Group from XALT MI pursuant to the Supply
Agreement as disclosed in the Board's views stated in 1)
above. Following the Litigation Announcement made by the
Company, certain customers of the Group had expressed
concerns as to whether or not the Group may still be able
to secure reasonable technical support from its supplier
(that is, XALT MI) towards the battery cells manufactured by
XALT Ml and to be sold by the Group to them for use in the
automobile or auto products they process or produce if and
when any after-sale or other services regarding the battery
cells are needed. Due to this reason, it has significantly
inhibited the sale by the Group of the battery cells in the
PRC market. In the circumstances, the Company’s auditor
has casted doubts on the probability of inventories held
to be sold in the near future. While the Group has been
proactively looking for overseas markets to boost the sale
of the battery cells comprising the Group's inventories and
does not consider that it will have difficulty in providing or
arranging to provide any technical support required to its
customers because the Group does not place reliance on any
single supplier and have its own technical team to render
technical support, solutions and services to its customers
as and when needed. the Company’s auditor considered
that the above is not sufficiently reliable information for
valuing the inventories and determining the probability of
inventories held to be sold from the audit’s perspective.
Accordingly, the Company’s auditor took a prudent
approach regarding the audit of the inventories of the Group
and qualified its auditor’s report in that regard.
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The Board considers that, as the battery cells have a
relatively wide application in the automobile and other
industries, their net realisable value will not currently be
materially affected. The Board believes that, with the
Group's efforts, the sale of the battery cells will gradually
improve and probability of sale be enhanced. On this basis,
it is premature to make any impairment to the inventories at
the end of the Year.

The Board considers that the issues concerning the
prepayment to suppliers and inventories arisen as a result
of the Lawsuit currently do not have material impact on
the Group's business, operations or financial position until
the matters in dispute under the Lawsuit are resolved by
the parties to the Lawsult or finally adjudicated by legal
proceedings.

The Board will, depending on the business operation,
financial and other factors of or affecting the Group for
the year ending 31 December 2017 and after consultation
with the Company’s auditor, make appropriate accounting
treatment (including but not limited to considering
whether or not any impairment of any accounting items is
appropriate) for the year ending 31 December 2017.

RE-ELECTION OF AUDITOR

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA LIMITED will retire at the conclusion of
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM"), and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-
appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA LIMITED as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Yeung Yung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 August 2017

*

For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of
the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance
to ensure better transparency and protection of the overall
interests of the Company and its shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company wishes to
highlight that the Board will continue to devote efforts in
ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company and the
transparency and accountability of all operations.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”),
the Company had applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board

The Board is accountable to the shareholders of the Company
for leadership and control of the Company and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company and its
businesses by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The
Board focuses on overall corporate strategies and policies with
emphasis on the business growth and financial performance of the
Group.

The Board has determined that certain matters such as strategic
planning, significant transactions, and budget should be retained
for the Board's approval. It has formalized the functions reserved
to the Board to achieve a clear division of responsibilities between
the Board and the senior management of the Group. The Board
has delegated its responsibilities to the senior management to deal
with day-to-day operations and reviewed those arrangements on
a periodic basis. The senior management has frequently reported
back to the Board and obtained prior approval before making
decisions for key matters or entering into any commitments on
behalf of the Company.
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The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions of the Company with clear written terms
of reference. The Board had reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance, compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, training and continuous professional
development of its directors and senior management and this
corporate governance report in the discharge of its corporate
governance functions and to ensure compliance with the Listing
Rules.

In order to maximize the effectiveness of the Board and to
encourage active participation and contribution from Board
members, the Board has established three Committees (namely
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee) (the “Committee(s)”), each with
specific written terms of reference to assist in the execution of
their duties. The terms of reference of each of the Committees are
reviewed and amended (if necessary) from time to time, as are the
Committees’ structure, duties and composition so as to best suit
the needs of, and foster corporate governance excellence in, the
Company.

The Company Secretary and the external auditor engaged by the
Company shall attend the annual general meeting (the "AGM")
of the Company and, as far as possible, all other meetings of the
Board and the committees of the Board to answer questions and
advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance, accounting
and financial matters. The Company Secretary is an employee of
the Company and is appointed by the Board. All Directors have
access to the Company Secretary who is responsible for facilitating
the Board's processes, liaison among members of the Board and
the Group's compliance with the continuing obligations under
the Listing Rules, the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Buy-backs, the Companies Ordinance, the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and other laws, rules and regulations applicable to the
Group. During the Year, the Company Secretary had undertaken at
least 15 hours of relevant professional training annually to update
his skills and knowledge.
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All Directors are encouraged to propose and include items in the
agenda of each of the meetings of the Board and the Committees
for full discussion and deliberation. The Company Secretary is
delegated with the responsibility to prepare the agenda and,
where appropriate, take into account any matters proposed by any
Director/Committee member for inclusion in the agenda.

The Board meets regularly and at least four Board meetings are
scheduled annually at approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc
meetings are convened whenever necessary.

During the Year, ten Board meetings were held, due notice of
these meetings were given to or, depending on the circumstances,
urgency and/or importance of the matters, agreed to be shortened
or waived by all the Directors. Even though the Directors often
stay/travel in different time zones, they endeavour to make
themselves available for, and participate in the meetings to
the extent possible via teleconferencing mechanisms or other
electronic means.

Minutes of the Board/Committee meetings are recorded in
details for the matters considered by the participants of such
meetings and decisions reached, including concerns raised by
Directors and/or dissenting views expressed. The meeting minutes
are circulated to the Directors or Committee members within a
reasonable period of time after the meetings are held and taken
as the true records of the proceedings of such meetings. They are
kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection at
any reasonable time upon reasonable notice being served by any
Director. All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials at least 3 days before the intended date of
a Board or Board committee meeting unless there are restrictions
on disclosure due to legal and regulatory requirements or other
justifiable grounds.

Directors are provided with complete, adequate explanation and
information to enable them to make an informed decision or
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects
and to discharge their duties and responsibilities on a timely basis.
To enable the Directors to properly discharge their duties, they are
given access to independent professional advisers, when necessary,
at the expense of the Company.
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Whenever a member of the Board or member of a committee of
the Board has cause to believe that a matter to be voted upon
would involve him in a conflict or possible conflict of interest, he
is required to disclose the conflict of interest and is not allowed
to participate in the final deliberation or decision and will abstain
from voting on such matter.

Board composition

During the Year, the Board comprised the following members
(who remained in office as at 31 December 2016 unless otherwise
specified below):

Name
Executive Directors
Dr Yeung Yung (Chairman)
Mr Xu Jianguo (appointed as Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 3 February 2016)
Mr Hui Wing Sang, Wilson (Deputy Chairman)
Dr Huang Chunhua (Deputy Chairman)
Dr Wang Chuantao (re-designated as Deputy Chairman
with effect from 3 February 2016)
Mr Liu Stephen Quan
Dr Zhu Shengliang
Mr Li Zhengshan
Mr Ting Kwok Kit, Johnny
Mr Chen Xiao

Non-executive Director
Dr Xia Tingkang, Tim

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr Wong Lee Hing
Dr Song Jian
Dr Zhu Guobin
Mr Cheng Tat Wa
Dr Li Jianyong
Mr Chan Sin Hang

The biographies and other information of the current Directors
are set out in the "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among the
Directors.
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Under bye-law 87(1) of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-
laws"), at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three (3)), then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. Accordingly, the Directors
are subject to the free and absolute choice of the shareholders for
re-election at the annual general meetings. Whereas under bye-
law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board
should hold office until the next following general meeting of the
Company.

By virtue of Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, (1) Dr Wang Chuantao,
(2) Mr Liu Stephen Quan, (3) Dr Zhu Shengliang, (4) Dr Song Jian,
(5) Mr Wong Lee Hing; and (6) Dr Zhu Guobin would retire. Each
of them, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “2017
AGM"). Mr Wong Lee Hing has signified to the Company of his
intention not to offer himself for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting. Except for Mr Wong Lee Hing, each of the other retiring
Directors, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
2017 AGM.

The skills and expertise among the existing Directors are well-
balanced with a mixture of core competencies in areas such
as accounting and finance, legal, business and management,
marketing strategies, business development, and scientific
backgrounds.

The independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”) meet the
requirements of independence under the Listing Rules so that
there is a sufficient element of independence in the Board to
exercise independent judgments. The Board considers that all of
the INEDs are independent and the confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules had been obtained from
each of them as required by the Listing Rules.

The INEDs have the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary
duties as the executive Directors.

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016

RIEA QT 2 ARMAA ([ARIAA]) E87(1)
BZHRE RNEEREAEFAS L ERAK
= —HEBE (FWNEEAHTIIE=R)EH=
MEE AEARBEOETLR=97—"MNE
FEABYERERT HEREE (0EE
IR EAHNZRSES) BETELES
FimERT R Al EEXRBREBRFAZ
FEREARNEAEHBREETERRE -
)RR - RE A RMAIEeQE EEEE
ZAEDVEHRRR R N TIR R E =g 7Y
EERUNTNEENTHEEEARAT
KRB RE AL -

B ATMANEIZME - (VE)IIEEL - 2)8)
RAEEQRBREL - @QREBL - G)TF
B K6 ARBEBIELBEMT - BHEHTAE
BRITEENAAGEEREBFRE ([=
T+ FRBAFRE]) LEZER-TF
HEAERARARTESNBRREFAS
FESEE-BRIFELEN HMRIES
EEHFLERTBER S —+FRERB
FRGLESTHER-

REEFEZMERELRFEENZ LG RL
Tl EREAGT YT X BERE
B MSHEERE XBERMAIEERSES
FHZZOEE M-

BIUFATEENA LMRATEEB LI
ZRE NEEZSEARPNBUITE -
MER B H - EE2 SRR BBE I
TEFHBE Y YRk EmRZRER
AR ERFERE EMRAEINMGREL 2

MR E

BUFATEFEATESTARTABRZRE
EMROITERAERERE-



Corporate Governance Report

The functions of INEDs include, but not limited to:

o Participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgment to bear on issues of corporate strategy, corporate
performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standard of conducts;

o Taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

o Serving as member of and actively participating on matters
delegated by the Board to the committee(s) established by
the Board, if invited;

o Attending general meetings of the Company and developing
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders; and

o Scrutinizing the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives and monitoring the reporting
of performance.

Chairman, Deputy Chairmen and CEO

As at 31 December 2016, the Chairman of the Company was Dr
Yeung Yung. The Deputy Chairmen of the Company were Mr Hui
Wing Sang, Wilson, Dr Huang Chunhua and Dr Wang Chuantao,
and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") of the Company was Mr.
Xu Jianguo.

The Chairman of the Company provides leadership to the Board so
that the Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board
in a timely manner.

The Deputy Chairmen of the Company assist the Chairman of the
Company in carrying out his duties.

The position of CEO is vested with executive responsibilities
over the business directions and operational decisions of the
management and performance of the Group.

The Chairman of the Company also seeks to ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues raised at Board meetings
and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
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Appointment, Re-election, Retirement and Removal

It is the Board’s responsibility to select and appoint individuals
with integrity, experience and calibre to act as directors of the
Company. The Board reviews the profiles of the candidates and
seek recommendations from the Nomination Committee of the
Board on the appointment, re-election, retirement and removal of
directors.

All Directors are subject to rotation at least once in every three
years as required by the Bye-laws. Each Director is briefed and
updated to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Group and that he acquaints
himself with the common law duties and responsibilities of acting
as a director for a listed company and familiarise himself with the
applicable laws and regulations (including without limitation, the
Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance, the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, and the governance policies of the Company).

Each of the non-executive Directors (including INEDs) is appointed
for an initial term of not more than two years commencing from
his date of appointment and is renewable successively for a term
of one year until terminated by either party by giving not less than
one month's prior written notice to the other and is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders at annual
general meeting in accordance with the Bye-laws. Every Director
shall ensure that he can contribute sufficient time and effort
to the corporate affairs of the Company once he accepts the
appointment.

Inside information

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries. Control procedures have been implemented to ensure
that unauthorised access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee with specific terms
of reference (which are of no less exacting terms than those set
out in the Corporate Governance Code) to enable each of the
Committees to discharge its functions properly.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing financial
statements and internal control system of the Group. It also
provides advice on the financial and accounting policies of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors (namely Mr Wong Lee Hing,
Mr Cheng Tat Wa and Mr Chan Sin Hang), and the chairman of
the Audit Committee as at the date of this report was Mr Cheng
Tat Wa.

Two meetings of the Audit Committee were held for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The individual attendance of each
member is set out below:
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meetings attended

Name of Member HERR HEGERRH
Mr Wong Lee Hing TR & 212
Mr Cheng Tat Wa BEER A 212
Mr Chan Sin Hang REGELE 212

During the Year, the Audit Committee performed the following
work:

o Reviewed with the management the unaudited interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2016

o Reviewed with the management the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and their adequacy
and effectiveness

o Reviewed and discussed with the management regarding
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016

o Carried out such other duties as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code which included the review of the
independence and objectivity of the external auditor, the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations,
as well as the terms of their engagement. The Audit
Committee was satisfied with the outcome of their
review, and the Board shared the same views of the Audit
Committee.
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The Company Secretary keeps the minutes of Audit Committee.
Draft and final versions have been sent to all members of the
Audit Committee within a reasonable time after the meeting for
their comments and records respectively. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on both the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements for the Year, which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group's results and cash flows for the year then ended and were
properly prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards. The
Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties which may
affect the Company’s business or cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

In addition, the external auditor has stated its reporting
responsibility in the independent auditor’s report of the
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the external auditor in
respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the external
auditor of the Group were as follows:

ERZEGZERABANRNERE -
FLBZERERERREBRERE—RAE
BRHEARERECZEEREEN UD
IR ERH B Rk - EREES
IS E R OB AP A R R R B R

ESMGREUBBRRAREZER

EXURUEAFEZRAGUBHRERAE £
EMBHRREEMT S5 RRARE 2%
MAARAEERBEZALFREZRER
Rene CRBEREERERSTER
BREREEERE - EEXTAREMNE
ATMEEUA R EARRZEBLEAR
AFEREZRENEEERER-

LS SNERRZ BB D R A E R A B ISR
BB R E R RAELFRA(E

B B B <=
RAFER BAKEINDZBE R 2T
BRIFERRBEN BN ZERNAT

HK$

BT

Audit service B2 IR 1,600,000
Non-audit services* FEZRE 108,500
1,708,500

# The non-audit services mainly comprised review of interim financial ~ * FEZRBEFEQEEMPRUBER A

information, professional services in relation to possible transactions
and tax compliance services.
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Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility for overseeing management
in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
establishing procedures to enable the Group to identify, evaluate
and monitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the systems in a
timely manner. During the Year, the Company had, together with
the senior management of the Group and the audit committee
of the Board, reviewed and evaluated the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and considered that they
were adequate and remained effective.

Internal Audit Function

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group'’s relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible
for risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and for reviewing its effectiveness.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has set up the Remuneration Committee to
ensure that there are formal and transparent procedures for
formulating policies on the remuneration of the Directors and
senior management. As at 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee comprised Dr Yeung Yung (an executive Director and
the Chairman of the Board) and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Wong Lee Hing and Mr Cheng Tat Wa.
Mr Wong Lee Hing was the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee determined the
policy for the remuneration of executive Directors, assessed the
performance of the executive Directors and approved the terms
of their service contracts. The Remuneration Committee had also
made recommendations to the Board regarding the Company’s
remuneration policy and the formulation and review of the
remuneration package of all Directors and senior management of
the Company for determination by the Board and considered and
dealt with matters relating to appointment, retirement and re-
election of Directors.

No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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Details of the remuneration paid to members of the senior ARNEEFZNFAEESREIEREHKE (B
management of the Group (including the Directors) by band for £ ) ElIR&EE S D 2B EHH T
the Year are set out below:

Number of senior

Remuneration band management
il & = BREERBAM
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 A T 8
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,000,001 7C Z2,500,0007% 7T 3
HK$2,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 2,500,001 7T £4,000,000/% 7T 5
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 4,000,001 7L &5,500,000/% 7T -
HK$5,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 5,500,001/ 7£. 27,000,000/ 7T -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 7,000,001/ 7T £8,500,000/% 7T 1

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are  HriNZ B & 2 Bk iE &0 E 0] REE ST BT R ANA &)
available on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the  #3ufi&f]e

Company.

Number of
Name of Member meetings attended
BREXR HESERS
Dr Yeung Yung MEEL 212
Mr Wong Lee Hing FREEE 22
Mr Cheng Tat Wa MEELE 212
Nomination Committee REZEE

The Company has a Nomination Committee to ensure that there AR BIEMUIRHEZE L UHEREE =8
are fair and transparent procedures for the appointment, re- FEREEGEZVRFAFRBEH N
election and removal of directors to the Board. As at 31 December ZT— X FE+_-A=+—H REEELZE<Hh%B
2016, the Nomination Committee comprised Mr Wong Lee Hing M 3F$\1TE 35 T R B4 R EpEE R A LUK
and Mr Cheng Tat Wa, both being independent non-executive #TEE&TFERNITTEE(IRLIE LHAMK - (D5
Directors, and Dr Yeung Yung, being the Chairman of the Board 1Bt AIRZKEES 2 XE-

and an executive Director. Dr Yeung Yung was the Chairman of

the Nomination Committee.

Number of
Name of Member meetings attended
B RE®R HESERE
Dr Yeung Yung PRyE T 2/2
Mr Wong Lee Hing THRHEEE 2/2
Mr Cheng Tat Wa BligEE g 2/2

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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During the Year, the Nomination Committee carried out the
process of selecting and recommending to the Board candidates
for directorship with reference to diversity policy of the Company,
including the candidate’s professional knowledge, industry
experience, personal ethics, integrity and skills, evaluated the
Board’s composition, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and recommended the re-appointment
of retiring Directors for shareholders” approval at the forthcoming
2017 Annual General Meeting.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Attendance Records of Board/General Meetings

Details of the attendance of individual Director at general
meetings (including annual general meeting) and Board meetings
during the Year are set out below:

Name of Member
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Number of Board
meetings attended

Number of general
meetings attended

HERRAE HEEFES TS
BEXR ZRE ZRE
Executive Directors HITEF
Dr Yeung Yung MEEL 2/2 7/10
Mr Xu Jianguo REREE 12 5/10
Mr Hui Wing Sang, Wilson AKAERE 212 10/10
Dr Huang Chunhua BEEEELT 12 7/10
Dr Wang Chuantao TIEE L 12 6/10
Mr Liu Stephen Quan RIREE 12 4/10
Dr Zhu Shengliang KBERIET 12 6/10
Mr Li Zhengshan ZELEE 12 3/10
Mr Ting Kwok Kit, Johnny TE#RE 22 10/10
Mr Chen Xiao BREE L L 172 7/10
Non-executive Director FHiTEE
Dr Xia Tingkang, Tim BiERELT 2/2 6/10
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHHTEE
Mr Wong Lee Hing FHEEE 12 8/10
Dr Song Jian REEL 1/2 3/10
Dr Zhu Guobin AEHEL 2/2 6/10
Mr Cheng Tat Wa WEELE 212 9/10
Dr Li Jianyong TREELT 2/2 7/10
Mr Chan Sin Hang BREELEE 212 9/10
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Continuous Professional Development

During the Year, all Directors were provided by the Company with
materials (including but not limited to updates on Listing Rules and
guidelines on Directors’ Duties) to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company also
encouraged all Directors to participate from time to time courses
which they consider relevant at the expense of the Company so
as to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills for better
fulfillment of their duties as directors of a listed issuer.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors. All
Directors, after specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed to
the Company their compliance with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the Year.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there were no changes in the Company's
constitutional documents.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Company is committed to (i) protecting the rights of
Shareholders and ensuring that each Shareholder is treated equally
and fairly; and (i) reinforcing the trust placed in the Company
by the Shareholders by remaining open and transparent, which
objective the Company believes is the hallmark of a high quality
company.

The Company attaches great importance to communication
with the Shareholders. A number of means are used to promote
greater understanding and dialogue with the Shareholders and the
investing public.

The means of access includes without limitation the despatch
to Shareholders and/or release by the Company of the various
corporate communication of the Company (such as interim and
annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports, press releases
and other business information) via the website of the Stock
Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the
Company (http://hk1188.etnet.com.hk).

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Shareholders are encouraged by the Company to attend general
meetings of the Company where the Chairman of the Company
and other members of the Board and (if appropriate) the auditors
of the Company, are available to answer questions.

The following procedures are in place by which Shareholders may
(@) convene a special general meeting (the “SGM"); (b) make
proposals at Shareholders’ meeting; and (c) send enquiries to the
Board to achieve the above purposes.

(@)

Procedures by which Shareholders can convene a
SGM

Pursuant to section 74 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”), a Shareholder or
Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
may requisition the Directors to forthwith proceed duly
to convene a SGM by depositing a written requisition at
the registered office of the Company. Bye-law 58 of the
Company'’s Bye-laws provide for this right as well.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting (including the resolutions to be considered at the
meeting), signed by the requisitionists, deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date
of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
SGM, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months from the
date of deposit of the requisition.

A SGM so convened by the requisitionists shall be convened
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by the Directors.
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(b) Procedures for making proposals at Shareholders” (b)

RBRRASLRHERZRER

58

meetings

Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act allow certain
Shareholder(s) to requisition the Company to move a
resolution at an annual general meeting (the “AGM") of the
Company or circulate a statement at any general meeting
of the Company. Under section 79 of the Companies Act,
at the expense of the requisitionists unless the Company
otherwise resolves, it shall be the duty of the Company on
the requisition in writing by such number of Shareholders:

(i)  to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting;

(i) to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting sent to them any statement
of not more than one thousand words with respect to
the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at that meeting;

(i)  the number of Shareholders necessary to make the
above-mentioned requisitions to the Company shall
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be:
—  either any number of Shareholders representing - REZEREZEBLFBEBE
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting N Iﬁfﬁzﬁ/\i&
rights of all the Shareholders having at the date BIBRRBERERET D
of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting —toz—®FE ﬂHx?%(
to which the requisition relates; or B
- not less than one hundred Shareholders. - TLR—BHERE-
Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and HABEBERR2RER 2BMRERE
any such statement shall be circulated, to Shareholders HAERYARNBERETERAGRE R
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by RN ZARRIEBRAZBIARZAE

serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each such
Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice of
the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given
to any other Shareholder by giving notice of the general
effect of the resolution in any manner permitted for giving
him notice of meeting of the Company, provided that the
copy shall be served, or notice of the effect of the resolution
shall be given, as the case may be, in the same manner
and, so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of the
meeting and, where it is not practicable for it to be served
or given at that time, it shall be served or given as soon as
practicable thereafter.
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Section 80 of the Companies Act sets out the conditions to
be met before the Company is bound to give any notice of
resolution or to circulate any statement. Pursuant to section
80 of the Companies Act, the Company shall not be bound
to give notice of any resolution or to circulate any statement
as mentioned above unless:

(i) a copy of the requisition signed by the requisitionists,
or two or more copies which between them contain
the signatures of all the requisitionists, is deposited at
the registered office of the Company:

- in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution, not less than six weeks before the
meeting; and

- in the case of any other requisition, not less than
one week before the meeting;

(i)  there is deposited or tendered with the requisition
a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expense in giving effect to the procedures regarding
the giving of notice of resolution and/or circulation of
statement),

Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the registered
office of the Company, an AGM is called for a date six
weeks or less after the copy has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the above-mentioned time
shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the
purposes thereof.
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() Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board (00 MEERELEAZER
Shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the RARIESERR ST EEASEER
Company for any enquiries in relation to the affairs of the ZERERNARER RRAIUAEME -
Group. Shareholders may contact the Company in writing or BiEERANERAFBE:

by telephone or facsimile:

Address  :  Principal office of the Company o4k COARRAER
in Hong Kong — Suites 1407-8, 14/F, BB ZBIPER—
Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, BB
Wanchai, Hong Kong B E23REE D

141£1407-8=

Telephone :  +(852) 2530 9218 Eo © +(852) 2530 9218
Facsimile  :  +(852) 2525 2002 E8=1 © +(852) 2525 2002
Attention : Board of Directors/fCompany Secretary WA D BEg /NEWE
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Independent Auditor's Report
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To the shareholders of Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hybrid
Kinetic Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to
139, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1) Prepayment to suppliers

We were unable to obtain direct audit confirmation in
relation to the prepayment to a supplier and unable to
obtain sufficient evidence to ascertain that such prepayment
to the supplier will be recovered in the foreseeable future.
In addition, there is lawsuit between the Group and the
supplier. We were therefore not able to satisfy ourselves as
to (i) whether the carrying amount of the prepayment to
suppliers amounted to approximately HK$333,814,000 as
at 31 December 2016 and 2015 are fairly stated; (ii) the
recoverability of prepayment to suppliers of approximately
HK$333,814,000 as at 31 December 2016 and 2015; and
(i) the existence and completeness of the disclosures of
contingent liabilities in relation to the prepayment to the
supplier.
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Inventories

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves the net realisable value of
the inventories. We were therefore not able to satisfy
ourselves as to the valuation of the inventories amounted to
approximately HK$97,270,000 as at 31 December 2016 is
fairly stated.

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might
have a consequential effect on the Group's financial
performance and cash flows for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 and the financial positions of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, and the related
disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these

matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis

for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.

Hybrid

Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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Independent Auditor's Report

Trade and other receivables
Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of trade receivables and
prepayment, deposits and other receivables for impairment.
This impairment test is significant to our audit because
the balance of trade receivables and other receivables of
approximately HK$869,724,000 as at 31 December 2016
is material to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group’s impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
- Assessing the Group's procedures on granting credit/
loans limits and credit/loans periods to customers/

borrowers;

- Assessing the Group's relationship and transaction
history with the customers/borrowers;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
- Assessing ageing of the debts;

- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers/
borrowers;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the customers/
borrowers;

- Assessing the value of the collateral for the debts; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group's exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for trade
receivables and prepayment, deposits and other receivables
is supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor's Report
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(i) Available-for-sale financial assets
Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of available-for-sale financial
assets for impairment. This impairment test is significant
to our audit because the balance of available-for-sale
financial assets of HK$72,188,000 as at 31 December 2016
is material to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group’s impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;

Assessing the financial information of the financial
assets;

Obtaining and checking the evidence to support the
Group’s impairment assessment;

Assessing the competence, independence and integrity
of the external valuers engaged by the Group;

Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting
with the external valuers to discuss and challenge
the valuation process, methodologies used and
market evidence to support significant judgments and
assumptions applied in the valuation model;

Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence; and

Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation
model.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for available-
for-sale financial assets is supported by the available
evidence.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’'s report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

Responsibilities of Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor's Report

B A2 B EN RS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s
website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/

auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614

Hong Kong, 31 August 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprenensive Income

sre Bm SEM R EIW SR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 Ekﬁ:; —RETA=t+—RHILFE

2016 2015
—N"E —ET—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THET FHET
Continuing operations BEBEES
Revenue e A 7 15,529 38,004
Cost of sales 5 & P A (11,683) (36,534)
Gross profit £ 3,846 1,470
Other income HAB WA 8 34,605 28,222
Distribution costs 73 A AR (444) (225)
Administrative expenses TS (393,299) (388,927)
Share of results of associates JEIGE & DA 2 A 18 (3.448) 11,519
Loss before tax FRIREIES 1S (358,740) (347,941)
Income tax expense Fri5 %52 11 (805) (1,098)
Loss for the year from RERFBREEK 2
continuing operations REFEE 13 (359,545) (349,039)
Discontinued operations ERLESER
Loss for the year from REERIEEEEE 2
discontinued operations REFEE 12 = (7,288)
Loss for the year EEEHIR (359,545) (356,327)
Other comprehensive Htt2mka  (BKR)
income/(loss):
Items that may be reclassified to ~ AJEEF B E R o
profit or loss: EH -
Exchange differences on BREBIINEBZER
translating foreign operations EH-A%E
— Group (66,632) (27,415)
Exchange differences on BREBIINEB ZER
translating foreign operations EH-EBERNT
— Associates (1,384) 2,408
Release of translation reserve to R E— B A AR
profit or loss upon disposal of KHEFEREERR
a subsidiary - (3,938)
Other comprehensive loss FEERMZEGE
for the year (68,016) (28,945)
Total comprehensive loss FEEREEEEE
for the year (427,561) (385,272)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HHZ T —RF+T-_A=T—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E THET FAT
Loss for the year BMTATEEFTFEESR:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PIN/NESTEF N
From continuing operations REFBECEER (355,303) (343,229)
From discontinued operations RE BRI ST - (7,288)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR
From continuing operations REFEEEET (4,242) (5,810)
From discontinued operations KB DR IEEEETE - -
(359,545) (356,327)
Total comprehensive loss for DTATEEXREERZE
the year attributable to: R
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZ PN (421,185) (376,067)
Non-controlling interests FEFER S (6,376) (9,205)
(427,561) (385,272)
Loss per share BRIBGR 16
Basic and diluted AR #E
(cents per share) (=R&AL)
From continuing operations REFELEER 1.75 1.94
From discontinued operations KB DRI E T - 0.04
From continuing operations REFBELEER R
and discontinued operations B IEEEET 1.75 1.98
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sra IR

At 31 December 2016 AT — RNFE+_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 Fi#ExT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L ER = 17 80,329 79,372
Investment in associates REEERRIZ2IE 18 38,465 20,354
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ At HESREE 19 72,188 10,982
Prepayments TERT 5K 20 33,669 36,656
Finance lease receivables JE Yt & B FE 21 1,639 13,584
226,290 160,948
Current assets REEE
Inventories 5E 22 97,270 4,087
Finance lease receivables U gt & EFKIE 21 15,154 8,776
Trade and other receivables FEUINE SFB R EMmER 23 869,724 639,797
Amount due from a non-controlling & 4 — &1 B B A &) JEFE A%
shareholder of a subsidiary AR R FRIE 24 = 2,483
Short-term investments RHIRE 25 - 84,001
Derivative financial instrument MESRTAE 26 4,260 -
Structured bank deposits EEERITER 27 = 420,182
Pledged bank deposits EHEMRITER 2,007 1,607
Bank and cash balances IR1T IR 46k 28 695,258 999,820
1,683,673 2,160,753
Current liabilities nEAEE
Trade and other payables ERESHENREMEMNIEK 29 48,247 40,559
Borrowings BE 30 - 196
Current tax liabilities BEAfi BB E 298 920
48,545 41,675
Net current assets REEESRE 1,635,128 2,119,078
NET ASSETS HESE 1,861,418 2,280,026
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

NN Ry A

At 31 December 2016 A=ZZ— XFE+_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—REFE —hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E THET FET
Capital and reserves BFR R

Share capital fig A 32 2,033,787 2,032,587
Reserves Eii 33(a) (206,448) 210,984

Equity attributable to owners of AN RHEA AJE(FEZ
the Company 1,827,339 2,243,571
Non-controlling interests JEITE AR M 34,079 36,455
TOTAL EQUITY BaEE 1,861,418 2,280,026

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 139 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31
August 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

Xu Jianguo
Director
BF
#®RER
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Consolidated Statement of Ghanges

;\\/ AN
For the year ended 31 December 2016 2= - =

Attributable to owners of the Company

N Equity
oy T

—RETA=t+—RHILFE

FATRAARLE
Share-based Non-
Share Share  Translation payment Other  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
L
k¥ ROEE  BERRE AARE RHRE  RHER #it  FHRES @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T Tin Tin Tén T
At 1 January 2015 -1§-A-A 1418714 727,895 9,368 366,715 (35,491)  (1,910,561) 577,140 35273 612413
Subscription of new shares 516,922 1,252,776 - - - 1,769,698 1,769,698
Recognition of equity-settled FEOHRATNZFE
share-hased payment - - 127,400 - - 127400 - 127400
Share issued under share option schemes BEERE 2R RN 96,951 139,404 - (102545 - - 133810 - 133810
Avising from deemed acquisition of ERfERE-EHERAL
non-controling interests of a subsidiary FERERMEE - - - - (10,387) - (10,387) 10387 -
Disposal of retained shares HERBRY - - - - 30212 - 30212 - 30212
Consideration shares received FHE-EHBADKRZAERR
in respect of disposal of a subsidiary - - - - (52,494) - (52,494) - (52,494)
Disposal of subject shares HERNRA - - - - 44259 - 44259 - 44259
Total comprehensive loss for the year TEELABELE - - (25,550) - (350517)  (376,067) (9205 (385272
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RFt-A=1+-A 2,032,587 2,120,075 (15,682) 391,570 (3901)  (2,261,078) 2243571 36,455 2,280,026
At 1 January 2016 RZ%-~5-A-A 2,032,587 2,120,075 (15,682) 391,570 (23901)  (2261,078) 2243571 36,455 2,280,026
Share issued under share option schemes s HELid U 1,200 2126 - (1472) - - 1,854 - 1,854
Recognition of equity-setted DAEREEEURO M 25
share-based payment - - - 3,09 - - 3,09 - 3,09
Increased in non-controling interests AMELR RGN
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - 4,000 4,000
Total comprehensive loss for the year REEREEREE - - (65,882) - - (355303 (421185) (6376)  (427,561)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"ETZA=1-A 2,033,787 2122201 (81,564) 393,197 (23901) (2616381 1,827,339 34,079 1,861,418
FEEEERAT - FER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HHZ T —RF+T-_A=T—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—REFE —HhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities EBFHZHERE
Loss before tax BRILATE R
From continuing operations BEREER (358,740) (347,941)
From discontinued operations BRI EETS - (7,340)
Adjustments for: HTEEEEY Y B
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HWBEARZEE = 6,890
Share of results of associates iy N 3,448 (11,519)
Equity-settled share-based payment VAR 25 45 30 A
P& fn < 5 2 SRR 3,099 127,400
Interest income F B U A (19,757) (11,137)
Finance costs B %58 A - 108
Depreciation e 18,835 12,413
Impairment of other investments Hiniz &R E - 11,479
Fair value (gain)/loss on TESMEEATE
derivative financial asset (Yezk) /BB (4,260) 4,326
Impairment of property, W - BB MEEHRE
plant and equipment 5,986 3,704
Impairment of available-for-sale AP EeREERE
financial asset 5,707 4,971
Impairment of inventories FERE 3,606 -
Impairment of other receivables H W OB E 67,498 461
Recovery of impairment of other 1z [B] E i, JE W RO (B
receivables - (93)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of HEWE - HBER
property, plant and equipment ?“1%2 (Wezs) /BB (214) 308
Operating loss before working capital BB ER K EER
changes (274,792) (205,970)
Change in inventories FEEE (96,789) (4,003)
Change in trade receivables EWE 5 RIEF (304) -
Change in bills receivables FE U =45 - (555)
Change in other receivables, Hipfe s & &
deposits and prepayments TEA SR (294,135) (514,097)
Change in finance lease receivables N R & FH E 708 5,567 (22,360)
Change in trade payables BB S Iﬁﬁ@) 7,912 3,946
Change in accruals and other payables BstE R M H M ENRED) (224) (2,809)
Cash used in operations EEMARS (652,765) (745,848)
Interest paid B E - (108)
Tax paid [RENERE (1,427) (134)
Net cash used in operating activities E&EZEFMAR&SHE (654,192) (746,090)

72 Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &&= =%

;\\/ AN

eREemREXR

—RETZA=t—BLHFE

2016 2015
—RE —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Cash flows from investing activities ﬂ?‘ﬁ!hzfﬁﬁmui
Net cash inflow from disposal of HE—ERBA
a subsidiary fﬁ/i\im)\%%"ﬁ - 43,574
Net proceeds from disposal of HERBRN 2
retained shares FTi5 308 58 - 30,212
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEESREE
financial assets (66,913) (15,757)
Purchase of property, BEMZE BWERRE
plant and equipment (34,510) (66,129)
Decrease/(increase) in RHIEE R (1)
short-term investments 84,001 (76,271)
Interest received EFIE 19,757 8,576
Prepayment for purchase of BEWE HER
property, plant and equipment B TR - (845)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE - BER
property, plant and equipment BY-RIESE/ e 5,815 968
Completion of capital injection to XA —ERBRREE
a subsidiary - 46,800
Payment to acquire an associate B EE —EEE AR R (21,061) -
Decrease in amount due from a el —EHNEA
non-controlling shareholder of FE 1 AR A% 5] SR IE R
a subsidiary 2,483 -
Decrease/(increase) in structured EBHRITERRD
bank deposits (1Zhn) 420,182 (324,686)
Increase in pledged bank deposits B ER 1T 17 )38 N (400) (804)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREEZBHMRE(FRA)
investing activities BesR 409,354 (354,362)
Cash flows from financing activities MEFHZHERE
Net proceeds from issuance of BITIRAPTS S F 58
share capital - 1,769,698
Net proceeds from shares issued RIBRE IR RT 21 81T AR D
under share options scheme FTiS 38 558 1,854 133,810
Borrowings raised FRELEER - 5,586
Repayment for borrowings BEEE (196) -
Net cash generated from MEEHREH2HE
financing activities 1,658 1,909,094
Net (decrease)/increase in cash ReRAEFEYMZ
and cash equivalents (Md), BmeE (243,180) 808,642
Cash and cash equivalents at REVZRELRSEEDY
beginning of year 999,820 203,995
Effect of changes in foreign EXEEH w8
exchange rate (61,382) (12,817)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZAESRAESEED
at end of year 695,258 999,820
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents Re&RREEFEMHF
Bank and cash balances R1T MRSk 695,258 999,820
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT A BTISERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HHZ T —RF+T-_A=T—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited was incorporated in Bermuda
as an exempted company with limited liability. The address
of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The address of its principal place
of business is Suites 1407-8, 14th Floor, Great Eagle Centre,
23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and have
been suspended for trading since 3 April 2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) were development
of advanced batteries materials and development of high-
tech electric motor vehicles. The principal activities of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants that are relevant to its operations and
effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2016. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised
HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the Group's
accounting policies, presentation of the Group's financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and
prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position
to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
a material impact on its results of operations and financial
position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &&= =%
3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and include the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities
that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
AT A BTISERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HHZ T —RF+T-_A=T—HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the
Company's share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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(Continued)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity
but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial
ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method and
is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of
the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of
the investment and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting period when
there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only
after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

EXET K ()

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values
in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

Are SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T — RET-_A=+T—HILFE

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
3.

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The principal useful lives are as follows:

Over the expected useful lives
of 5 to 10 years or over the
term of lease, whichever
is shorter

5 years

5to 10 years

4 to 10 years

Leasehold improvements,
fixtures and fittings

Furniture and equipment
Machineries
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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(Continued)

Leases

The Group as lessee

(i) Operating leases
Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessor

(i)  Finance leases
Leases that substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as finance leases. Amounts due
from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s
development is recognised only if all of the following
conditions are met:

- An asset is created that can be identified (such as
software and new processes);

- It is probable that the asset created will generate
future economic benefits; and

- The development cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years. Where no internally
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre BRI Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
3.

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN e el

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T — RET-_A=+T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Investments are classified as either financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss or available-for-sale financial
assets.

(i)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets not classified as trade and other
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in fair value of these investments are recognised in
other comprehensive income, until the investments
are disposed of or there is objective evidence that
the investments are impaired, at which time the
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are recognised in profit
or loss. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity instruments, are measured at
cost less impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
3.

(Continued)

Investments (Continued)

(i)  Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for
equity investments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are not subsequently reversed through
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit
or loss for debt instruments classified as available-for-
sale financial assets are subsequently reversed and
recognised in profit or loss if an increase in the fair
value of the instruments can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

Impairment losses on unquoted equity instruments
that are not carried at fair value because their fair
value cannot be reliably measured, or on derivative
assets that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments are not
reversed.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade, loans
and other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between
the receivables’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of
the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
3.

(Continued)

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

(a)

(d)

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
customer. This is usually taken as the time when the
goods are delivered and the customer has accepted
the goods.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Services fees are recognised in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered.

Subsidy income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
A R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T — RET-_A=+T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Pension obligations
The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged in profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an expense.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
3.

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and its joint ventures, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN el

For the year ended 31 December 2016 2= - =
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

—AFT-AZt—ALFE
BEXErEE (&)

BiE (48)

AEERMBEHRERANEERBEZRE
EEG B ERPG A AT REERE 2 M
ZERHERRLERIE - AEE—RBAT
BEERVERZRBRAREHRBRE
X B TR & B Al X R) BE A JE aR At )
AR R E R E5R  REAH
TR ARSI AR IRE R R - i
HERAREXENTSER (REBA
BERRBR SN —IRBE &2 FE SR 4 A 7R
TEEGHEN RGP 2 EMEER
BEMES ATERREHUEERA

B

REBFBAWE D 7] KB & R B AR E
RELEZREMEEAZERHERZE
BREAECH ARG EiHAKEEN
ZHERZR O BREREEA
BE & 7 AJ LS SR 8 ) Rl 4E Bl s o

BEEMIAEE 2 REEENEREHR
Tat - W AR BEH 2 SRR Bl A
VAN [E] 2 R sk B0 40 & 2 B SRR

TR R R R A D B TR
EETZBE REHRAGEHERE
E S RENE R 2 B - B BUE
WiBHR M RESEN 22
Els R EE NS ERY BE A
BRI E R AR E S R B
RIS R

ERERAEEMBEZFERBIZRA
SERHEMREHKREKBERLEE
RBEREEZ A MESL 2 HBER
%O

EEEEBRAR ZE—<FFR

89



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ARE SRR MY
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HHZ T —RF+T-_A=T—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®:HEB%® (1)
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued) BiiE (&)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a BB A AT R GIBTHER LS5 RN ART 1R
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against EEMEMPHIBEAE BEEREESE
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes N B EEA R TR ERU e
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends BB RSB SR FEEELEEH A
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. MEEENABER ELEHREEENE
BEaEH -
Related parties EAER
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the MiEh RHEAEEEHEL ANTHE
Group. 2o
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) MBUTAL BIFZALSEHIIR
related to the Group if that person: R E FRE
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () HAEEESZEHREIHER

12 Il

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBEBERNFE X

(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) BARRLELSARZEE
of the Company or of a parent of the Company. EIREKE -

(b)  An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if (b) fHFFE THMEARET - BIFZE 8
any of the following conditions applies: REE (RBRERS) BAE:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members of (i HEBERAQAFTBER—%E
the same group (which means that each parent, pd s A= UNCINQ:IE=SSYNSIB
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the by WNSI AR ER ) =N
others). ILfE A ) -

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —MHEEARS—EBE B
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a NAlEERE(HE—F
member of a group of which the other entity is a BAKBE AT ZEBETK
member). ISW/NEI i AN e

%)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i MEEBEEHAER—F=FHZ
party. GERE

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —FEBEBRE=FEEZE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. B ME—EBERBRZE

=HERzHE NG
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NN el

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T — RET-_A=+T—HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EX®iH% ()

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if
any of the following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Company or to a parent of the

Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group's
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
productions processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
3.

(Continued)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets other
than inventories and receivables, to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016

NETZA=+—HIEFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

EXET R ()

BEERE

REREHR  AEEENEBTLLE
EE (FEREEHEIN) 2 REE
NEERSAEMNRRBATZEEED
HBRRERBE - HEEERNZFTR
Qg EEZ AT E & BIAE T RIE
EERE - WA EREE 2 T
Cef MAKESHAEEMBRS
EEBM eI SEE-

QI EE Y VNS R =V ek RN E S
BEMER 2BKSE RHEEMREE
B et R 2R EE A RRIRE T
B ERBEEZFEREER TR
R BATRGIR X - BRI E R R(E -

HEEXRSELEM 2 AIKEI SR RA
HEREREE MEESRSELEM
Z BREE S R = A W2 £ 58 o RE
BARNMERER  BIFEREERE
HEEIER RIEBR T REEERK
BREMBERRE -

iR EBEENERER MEEXRE
ELEM 2 REESEMEELETZ
fHEF AT U Bl & 58 - MR NR 2 BREE T
SHABRRNBEFEA BEREENL
ReEL B EERMNEEE 2KE
B8 (HRRE I E) - BERIREDED
B EmER RO EERERS
IR RUEBER T R E R B R E %
BREMEBERE



(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
4,

ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations,
which are dealt with below).

(a) Revenue recognition
During the year, sales of approximately
HK$47,000,000 had been subsequently cancelled.
The directors consider that it is appropriate not to
recognise the sales during the year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
and other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in
the year in which such estimate has been changed.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges of its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated, or
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference
to the present value of estimated future cash flows.
Where the future cash flows are less than expected or
there are unfavourable events and change in facts and
circumstance which result in revision of future estimate
cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.

(@)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars and Renminbi. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The functional currency of certain major subsidiaries
of the Group is RMB. The Group is mainly exposed to
currency risk between RMB and USD.

At 31 December 2016, if the RMB had weakened
5 per cent against the US dollar with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after
tax for the year would have been HK$8,631,000
(2015: HK$10,045,000) higher, arising mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange loss on monetary
items denominated in US dollar. If the RMB had
strengthened 5 per cent against the US dollar with
all other variables held constant, consolidated loss
after tax for the year would have been HK$8,631,000
(2015: HK$10,045,000) lower, arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange gain on monetary items
denominated in US dollar.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Continued)

(b) Credit risk

(0

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances,
trade and other receivables, investments and derivative
financial instruments included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group'’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. The credit risk on bank and cash balances is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk
to its trade receivables as the Group's largest customer
contributed approximately 53% (2015: Nil) of the
revenue for the year and shared over approximately
Nil (2015: Nil) of the trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period. The Group has policies and
procedures to monitor the collection of the trade
receivables to limit the exposure to non-recoverable of
the receivables and there is no recent history of default
for the customer.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

nﬂ‘CJ

(b)

(o)

EREE e
For the year ended 31 December 2016 H 2= - =
5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

—RETZA=t—BLHFE

MEEREER ()

FERER
K%l%%@EFE%Z%%%
ERR AT ASREMBIRREKRZ
ﬁ@&ﬁﬁ B TEUCE B F0A N
HAEYR  WERITEER T A
ZHERmEE.

KEIJﬁ“” FEIRMAE AL
2z BEPELIEE - AN F T

Eﬁl AR ER T RERR
B2 RIT BERTT MR B RERZIE
ERBAR-

HRAREZAEFPIERFER
A#IS3% (ZE—HF &) KR
BEMREERE SHHIAZ L E
HARTE(ZTE—2F:F) &K
SEERKRESFREEERR
%EE$ZIE,KEI RAEBE
&Ef%%ﬁ%? IR 2 WK
ﬁluﬁﬂﬂ£W@$W K
AR B PR 4 2 AL

REE TR

AR B B B B R
BROALRE  HERARS
RE bR BN ERBESY
DELHE-

EEEEBRAR —E—<EFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
5.

(Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities

NETZA=+—HIEFE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

MEREEE (/&)
(C) ulb@) Eéj—w (,%E)

AEETRARZIHERDN

is as follows: R
Total
contractual
undiscounted
Carrying cash flow
amount within 1 year
—FRZEN
RXBERRE
IRE{E mERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 31 December 2016 RIE—REF
+=A=+-—H
Trade and other payables ENESHRER
H A AR 48,247 48,247
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF
+-AZ=+—H
Trade and other payables ERESHER
H A FE AR 28,971 28,971
Borrowings BE 196 196
29,167 29,167

(d) Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2016, as the Group has minimal
exposure to interest rate risk, the Group’s operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in

market interest rates.

(e) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016

(d)

(e)

) 2= [ by
P

NETZA=1+—8" EH

P SR B T 2 ) R L B A4

Hﬂ($§,‘%l2 $£ﬁi//|b7§@(_}:%
SRS R EE o

AFE
MBI KA RRASEE 2
THEERCRARCREER
ZFEBEARBZRFEES



Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

5.

B IR R

wm
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"XF+ A =+—HILFE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5 HMBREEE (&)
(Continued)
(f) Categories of financial instruments at 31 f) AR+-A=+—Hz&®IA
December k=gl
2016 2015
—RE —E—hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#ExT FHET
Financial assets EMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets At HESRMEE 72,188 10,982
Loans and receivables ff?)’(&[%ﬂﬁlm (BfERe &
(including cash and SEEM)
cash equivalents) 1,191,596 1,660,074
Financial liabilities eMmaR
Financial liabilities at HEEKA BB E
amortised cost 48,247 29,167

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair
value hierarchy that categories into three levels the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

indirectly.

6. LF{EFIE

RHEATHELEENFEANEESF

RGP EEERNIRERAES
N2 EBR - AT FEFEZREFTH
FERZAFERBR HﬁquE"‘?ufEﬁﬁFH
MERTZE@AREY R=EE&:

—REBABIE  AEERFEAHA
A R™ S LR AER
BEXBBEERZH
B (CREFHE) -

inputs other than quoted prices included FoRWASE: UREENBEERE
within level 1 that are observable for SEEER ZWAR
the asset or liability, either directly or B E-—REFEzWm
EBR AN
unobservable inputs for the asset or FoRWMASIE: EEXBELTAE

liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of the
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

g AR -
$’¥ IZBZ’“V%EE%’ %ﬁ¢ﬁ$lﬁ‘iﬂﬁiﬁl

Eﬂ 1IZ$§)\&$§E

EEEEBRAR —E—<EFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NU‘EJ
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —

B MR R

NFETZA=+—RHIEFE

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(Continued)

6. DFEEE (&)

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 (a) E’\ T-RF+-A=+—82
December 2016: NEEEREE:
Fair value measurements using: Total
ERUTHEZAFEME: ot
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
F—#R - fot $ZR —B-XF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET THT FTET
Description A
Recurring fair value EEMLTEEME:
measurements:
Derivative financial instrument TESRIA
- Profits quaranteed arrangement  —EFIRE L HE - - 4,260 4,260
Total recurring fair value BERLTFEHELER
measurements - - 4,260 4,260

During the vyear, there were no transfer between
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
(2015: Nil). The Group's policy is to recognise transfer
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur.

FRF-REFE_HFELES
B MEEFE=AEAREL (=
T—HF ) AKEZBRS
RBEEEH 2 RE B RER
NP EERE Bk

Profits guaranteed

arrangement
BRIGERE
2016 2015
—E—-R¥F —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Description i it
At 1 January m—H—H - -
At initial recognition P W) 25 B SR B - -
Total gains recognised in REBIBRERZ
consolidated profit or loss (#) Wes 858 (#) 4,260 -
At 31 December R+Z—HA=+—~H 4,260 -
(#) Include gains for assets held at ~ (#) B2 FE R R EH K
end of reporting period BAEMNEE 2 K 4,260 N/A A~

The total gains recognised in profit or loss is presented
in administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 6.

an\

B IR R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT—"F+-A=+—HILFE

(Continued)

(b)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (b)
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2016:

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value
measurements are mainly:

Level 3 fair value measurements

AFEEHE ()

REBMAMMBEBEAR-E
—RFE+ZRA=+—B2RQFES
BRTRMERERE AR Z
&

AEE-REZEABRATEE
BE N ELR 2N EE
ERETHF-RIVFEFEZMR
B

=BATFEAERBZEIER
AEEBABBIER:

B=ZRKAFEE

Valuation Unobservable Effect on fair value Fair value

Description technique inputs Range for increase of inputs 2016

BABEANS Z-R%

i fHERHE TURRBARE &F LAFEZRE LFE

HK$'000

TET

Profits quaranteed Discounted payoff Credit discount rate  Discount rate make reference to  Decrease 4,260

arrangement with scenarios comparable bond yields

AHRERH ERERATHRRN FERRE BREZZTLLBES G A

EEEEBRAR —E—<EFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE

7. REVENUE 7.

Revenue from the Group's principal activities, which is also
the Group's turnover, represents total invoiced value of
goods supplied. Revenue recognised during the year is as

L ON

KEREEEBRB WA TRAIARSE
BMe2x8E EHEERCRERE
B FRERIWAIT

follows:
2016 2015
—E—-R¥ —E-0F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAET
Sales of high-tech electric BRERERIHEERE
motor vehicles (FELEER)
(Continuing operations) 9,199 38,004
Sales of battery management BHBEERGR
systems and spare parts HmiE SRR
(Continuing operations) (BEBEEEER) 5,295 -
Interest income from BEMEERN S WA
finance leasing (FELEER)
(Continuing operations) 1,035 -
Sales of lithium-ion power batteries #2878 11 E it §5 & 58
(Discontinued operations) (BRI TR ) - 6,941
15,529 44,945
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OTHER INCOME

Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN el

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &&= =%

8. HftillgtA

—RETZA=t—BLHFE

2016 2015
ZB—REF —ZT-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET
Interest income B U A 16,188 8,576
Other receivables interest income E fth e R B A 3,569 2,561
Exchange gain RN 13,707 16,476
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREE WS
plant and equipment 214 -
Rental income Hae WA 279 -
Recovery of impairment of Wiz [B1 EC i, JE W OB (B
other receivables - 93
Others Hh 648 558
34,605 28,264
Representing: K&
Continuing operations FREEEET 34,605 28,222
Discontinued operations (note 12) 4% |F & 27 (MF5E12) - 42
34,605 28,264

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and
marketing strategies. The Group has two reportable
segments: development of high-tech electric motor vehicles
and development of advanced batteries materials.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as those described in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements. Segment profits or losses do not
include unallocated corporate income and expenses.
Segment assets do not include unallocated corporate assets.
Segment liabilities do not include unallocated corporate
liabilities. Segment non-current assets do not include
financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment
benefit assets and rights arising under insurance contracts.

SHEH

AEBEZ 2B MER‘ETREMRZ
BRI RSB AP B S T 45
HERBEEATR WEXEBXEILE
B-AEEAMENT2HRD A HES
MEEEIERFHE LM

BESB G BRARAMBRE
B RE 3P 32t & AR R o o3 B g A KBS 4R T
BREANDECERST - DHEETRRE
ANBERBEE - DEHBEETRIERD
ERmBE-DHMIERBDEETEBRES
MIE- uL%RIEéfE*%EE%H%?Eﬂﬁ
ENRBEHNBETEL ZERN-

Pk

L

EEEEBRAR ZE—<FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

AEFZA=ST-RILEE
9. SEWEH(IR)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets EHEE2Emo b afEE  EEEE
and liabilities: B2 EH:
High-tech
electric Advanced
motor batteries
vehicles materials Total
=Lk
BHRE XxETLVHE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2016: BEE_Z—X
+ZA=+—HLEFE:
Revenue WA 15,529 - 15,529
Segment loss D EbE R (142,392) (5,035) (147,427)
Depreciation e (1,784) (4,236) (6,020)
Income tax expense PSR 805 - 805
Other material non-cash items: HMBERFRSER :
Impairment of property, WE WEREERE
plant and equipment (4,539) (1,447) (5,986)
Impairment of inventories FERE 3,606 - 3,606
Additions to segment REDBIERBEE
non-current assets 1,070 3,256 4,326
At 31 December 2016: RIB—F
+=-R=+—8:
Segment assets DEEE 939,826 18,581 958,407
Segment liabilities DB E 16,700 102 16,802
Year ended 31 December 2015: BE_Z-1%F
+ZA=+—HLEEE:
Revenue WA 38,004 - 38,004
Segment loss DEEE (34,344) (27,109) (61,453)
Depreciation nE (1,507) (3,608) (5,115)
Other material non-cash items: HihERFRESIEE
Impairment of property, ME - BELRERE
plant and equipment (2,732) (972) (3,704)
Impairment of other investments Hin % &R E - (11,479) (11,479)
Research and development expenses At %% % [ 2 7 57 (36,895) (1,670) (38,565)
Additions to segment NEDHIERBEE
non-current assets 29,240 1,605 30,845
At 31 December 2015: R-E—1F
+=ZR=+—A:
Segment assets DHEE 965,624 21,260 986,384
Segment liabilities SEAEE 18,072 268 18,340

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016



SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN el

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"XF+-A=+—HILFE

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit and

9.

SWEH ()

A2/ ABWRA R F R EE - BER

loss, assets and liabilities: BEEER:
2016 2015
—N"E —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue: WA :
Total revenue of reportable Al 2H{H WA RERE
segments and consolidated WA K58
revenue 15,529 38,004
Profit or loss: ﬁ*‘li‘iﬁ?ﬂ :
Total loss of reportable segments WMo HBEEBLE (147,427) (61,453)
Corporate and unallocated /N ﬂ R R 5 Be s A g 48
profit or loss (208,214) (159,088)
Share-based payment VAR 9 219 2 3R (3,099) (127,400)
Income tax expense FrisBiFA X (805) (1,098)
Consolidated loss for the year REBBLEEB 2
from continuing operations NEREZEER (359,545) (349,039)
Consolidated loss for the year RESRIELEEK 2
from discontinued operations AERIFEEE - (7,288)
Consolidated loss for the year AKEBLEEER (359,545) (356,327)
Assets: HE:
Total assets of reportable segments  °] 2D & ELE 958,407 986,884
Corporate and unallocated assets: A Bl ADEEE:
— Available-for-sale - EeREE
financial assets 72,188 10,982
— Amount due from a — el — W%”_
non-controlling shareholder FEVEAR AR 3R 3K
of a subsidiary - 2,483
— Bank and cash balances held —AEBEBHFE 2
by the Group's headquarters RITRIRE 4 225,436 656,486
— Structured bank deposits —EBMRITER = 420,182
— Others —HAb 653,932 244,684
Consolidated total assets REEERE 1,909,963 2,321,701
Liabilities: BiE:
Total liabilities of reportable AIZHH A aERss
segments 16,802 18,340
Corporate and unallocated liabilities A& K k7 e & (&
— Borrowings —fBE = 196
— Tax payable —JERIBIE 298 920
— Others —HAt 31,445 22,219
Consolidated total liabilities e BEETE 48,545 41,675

EEEEBRAR ZE—<FFR

105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —

NFETZA=+—RHIEFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. SEEHE ()
Geographical information: % & H
2016 2015
—"E —hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Revenue (including KA (BREEHRILETES) :

discontinued operations):

United States of America EREBE ZEH = 2,267
The People’s Republic of China RE ARIAE ([HE])

(the "PRC") 15,529 39,235
Germany = = 1,462
Korea F2E - 1,940
Others HAb - 41

15,529 44,945

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based

REVEE R WATIREFME

on the locations of the customers. b &5 o
Revenue from major customers: FERPKA:
2016 2015
ZE—REF —HhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&xT FAET
Customer A BEPA N/A FEH* 17,803
Customer B XFB N/A FEH* 14,061
Customer C EPC N/A FEH* 6,140
Customer D EFD 7,749 N/A 713 A *
Customer E EPE 4,153 N/A i A

Revenue from above customers individually contributed
more than 10% of the total consolidated revenue of the
Group.

* Customer did not contribute more than 10% of the total
consolidated revenue of the Group for the year.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

10.

11.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B & —Z —

9. SWEH (1K)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

NN el

NE+-A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—ZE—REF —T—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TiExT FET
Non-current assets (other ERBEE(FEHE
than financial assets): EMEE) :
United States of America EFRE REH 422 16,457
The PRC A Y 115,216 102,526
Hong Kong and others BB R HEAM 36,825 17,399
152,463 136,382
FINANCE COSTS . BERA
2016 2015
—E—-R¥F —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#xT FET
Interests on bank loans IRITEFF B - 108
Representing: K&
Continuing operations GBS E TS - -
Discontinued operations BRI R (KisE12)
(note 12) - 108
- 108
INCOME TAX EXPENSE . r S RAX
2016 2015
—ZE—REF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FHET
Current tax — PRC Enterprise RVERFR I — R Bl R ZE PR A
Income Tax
— Provision for the year —F B 805 1,098
Deferred tax EEF IR - (52)
805 1,046
Representing: K&
Continuing operations SEIC AT 805 1,098
Discontinued operations EARIEEE T (5E12)
(note 12) - (52)
805 1,046

EEEEBRAR —E—<FFR
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sre SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for the year as the Group did not generate any assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong (2015: Nil).

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by Hong Kong Profits

Tax rate is as follows:

NFETZA=+—RHILFE

FRiSIRBAST (#)

HRASEEETBIL EEE TRER
iy Al - B 5L E B A B BAF B e
(ZZF—h%&F:8)-

Hfth 3 [ JERR B R A 2 BB R S TR IR
WITER 2EBREH DAZISEI,@%
¥R 2 BITREFTE

Fri5#if S BB IR B R R AT B G
KRB 2 BERNOT

2016 2015
—NE — R
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss before tax MR RIER
Continuing operations FEREERS (358,740) (347,941)
Discontinued operations BRI EETE - (7,340)
(358,740) (355,281)
Tax on loss before income tax, BEBERE AR EAR
calculated at the rates HwA R MR E
applicable to profit/loss BrPTISTIRTE B 2 FH 18
in the tax jurisdictions concerned (66,275) (78,665)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBWA ZHIBZE (1,937) (4,618)
Tax effect of non-deductible A HRAS 2 B &
expenses 67,953 83,195
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised  FRAER 2 FRIGE 18 2 FiTH R £ 1,064 1,134
Income tax expense for the year FEMGHES 805 1,046
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The disposal of Zhejiang GBS Energy Co., Limited (“GBS")
was completed on 10 January 2015 and GBS ceased to
be subsidiary of the Group with effect from that date.
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the loss on these
discontinued operations (included the loss on disposal of the
75% equity interests in GBS of HK$6,890,000) amounted to
HK$7,288,000.

An analysis of the results and cash flows of the discontinued
operations for the years ended 31 December 2015 is as

NN el

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &&= =%

. ERILEEE

—RETZA=t—BLHFE

HENTERE BSGRIERRAR ([E
BER)—ER-_ZT—ARE-—A+H=
KomEEBRHRZAETBAAEE
ZHBAR -BHE-_T—HE+ A
T+—HLFE ZEORIECEER
ZEB(BEREERB75%KEE
186,890,000/ 7T ) 47,288,000/ 7T, ©

ERIIEREEBHE_T—AF+_HA
=t RALEFEZEENRERENT

follows: LUNNE
2015
—hE
HK$'000
FET
Revenue WA 6,941
Cost of sales $HE AR (5,657)
Gross profit EAH 1,284
Other income HaA 42
Distribution costs Pal =D N (312)
Administrative expenses THRZ (1,356)
Finance costs W% E R (108)
Loss before tax BRILATEE (450)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RME AT 2 EE (6,890)
Income tax credit Frig it s 52
Loss for the year from REBRIEEEB c RFREER
discontinued operations (7,288)
Cash flows used in operating activities KEERHFAReRE (7,277)
Cash flows used in investing activities wREESFABE SRS (7)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEDMEEeRE 5,557
Net cash outflows RE M FEE (1,727)
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sre BRI Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —
13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

RET-A=+—ALEE
13. ZEEHE

AEE AFEBEREHR, (GTA)

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/
(crediting) the following:

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Continuing operations: BFHEEERE:
Auditor’s remuneration *Z%( Rl B 1,600 2,066
Equity-settled share-based TREREZ AR EET
payments to consultants L/{ M =~z 538 - 127,400
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKAN 11,683 36,534
Depreciation e 18,835 12,413
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWHE - BWEMEEZ
plant and equipment (M=) BB (214) 308
Change in fair value of derivative MEeMEEATEZS
financial asset (4,260) 4,326
Impairment of property, M- BERERERE
plant and equipment 5,986 3,704
Impairment of available-for-sale AP ESREE ZRE
financial asset 5,707 4,971
Impairment of inventories FEZRE 3,606 -
Impairment of other investments Hitnix & 2R E - 11,479
Impairment of other receivables EH fth fE W 2R B 67,498 461
Net exchange gains b H a5 R (13,707) (16,476)
Operating lease charges in respect T MIBF 2 & @EHLE
of land and buildings 35,400 14,338
Research and development costs it 7% & A B AR AR 34,912 38,565
Staff costs including directors’ BEIXA (BREEZEMS)
emoluments
— Salaries, bonus and allowances — ¥ & EALROERG 114,054 72,790
— Equity-settled share-based — DA s E W AR
payments X2 RIE 3,099 -
— Retirement benefits scheme *?EW?E*‘J%%H# BN
contributions 4,221 1,640
121,374 74,430
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T — RET-_A=+T—HILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 14 EEREEME
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of each director were as follows: BEEZMe R
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
BFiEF
e FaR®R HELEA e
2016 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE¥ T#T TET T#RT T#ERT
Executive Directors: BITEER:
Dr. Yeung Yung MEsE 78 7,410 - 7,488
Mr. Liu Stephen Quan 2REHE 80 - - 80
Mr. Hui Wing Sang, Wilson FKELE 80 3,120 18 3,218
Dr. Zhu Shengliang RBREL 80 1,080 - 1,160
Dr. Wang Chuantao FEEL 78 2,106 - 2,184
Dr. Huang Chunhua BEEEEL 78 2,340 - 2,418
Mr. Xu Jianguo REBESE 78 3,120 - 3,198
Mr. Li Zhengshan FIELEE 78 3,120 18 3,216
Mr. Ting Kwok Kit, Johnny TEgEEAE 80 2,340 18 2,438
Mr. Chen Xiao PRz 5 A 80 3,120 3 3,203
Non-executive Director: FRITES:
Dr. Xia Tingkang, Tim BEEREL 155 - - 155

Independent Non-Executive BUERTES:

Directors:

Mr. Wong Lee Hing FRIEEAE 80 - - 80
Dr. Song Jian RiEHEL 175 - - 175
Mr. Cheng Tat Wa WizEi s 80 - - 80
Dr. Zhu Guobin RER@E L 156 - - 156
Dr. Li Jianyong FRERBL 78 - - 78
Mr. Chan Sin Hang BREGLAE 78 - - 78

1,592 27,756 57 29,405
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14. DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ARE SRR MY
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HHZ T —RF+T-_A=T—HILFE

AND EMPLOYEES' 14. EERESHME (&)

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and scheme
Fees allowances  contributions Total
RIKER
itk e Rozi R B
2015 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-0f FET FET FET TET
Executive Directors: BiTEE:
Dr. Yeung Yung MatiE+ 78 3,647 - 3,725
Mr. Liu Stephen Quan BIREE 80 39 - 119
Mr. Hui Wing Sang, Wilson FXERE 80 3,989 18 4,087
Dr. Zhu Shengliang KBREBL 80 1,074 19 1,173
Dr. Wang Chuantao FIEHL 78 2,108 - 2,186
Dr. Huang Chunhua BEERT 78 4,184 - 4,262
Mr. Xu Jianguo REBRLE 78 3,903 - 3,981
Mr. Li Zhengshan ZELEAE 78 3,911 18 4,007
Mr. Ting Kwok Kit, Johnny TR E 80 3,193 18 3,291
Mr. Chen Xiao PR £ A 80 391 - 3,991
Non-executive Director: FHTES:
Dr. Xia Tingkang, Tim EEREL 155 - - 155
Independent Non-Executive ~ BILIFHITES:
Directors:
Mr. Wong Lee Hing FRIEE A& 80 - - 80
Dr. Song Jian R+ 186 - - 186
Mr. Cheng Tat Wa BEELrs 80 - - 80
Dr. Zhu Guobin REHE L 155 - - 155
Dr. Li Jianyong ZEBEEL 233 - - 233
Mr. Chan Sin Hang REGLE 78 - - 78
1,757 29,959 73 31,789

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the

year included five (2015: five) directors, whose emoluments

are reflected in the analysis above.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
A R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T — RET-_A=+T—HILFE

15. DIVIDENDS

16.

The directors do not recommend or declare the payment
of any dividend in respect of the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.

LOSS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

From continuing and discontinued
operations

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the loss
for year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$355,303,000 (2015: approximately
HK$350,517,000) and the weighted average number
of 20,336,916,000 (2015: 17,726,331,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share are presented as the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
share during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

From continuing operations

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$355,303,000 (2015: approximately
HK$343,229,000) the weighted average number of
20,336,916,000 (2015: 17,726,331,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

15. BR2
EENEREE T AER-T—F
F+-A-+— B EERSERERS
TRAETRZ B o

16. SERE1E

(@)

(b)

REFERCRIEEEER

ZREAEE
KRAREBABRGREREE
ThiRE A QR A A FE LA F
JE 518 #9355,303,000/8 7t (==
— A4 : #9350,517,000/8 7T) &
RFE B BT TR INE TR
£020,336,916,0000% (= Z—H
£ :17,726,331,0000% ) 51 & -

G BEE
HRBE-ZT—R"EK-_F—h
FH_A=1T—HIEFELXRA
BB EEE AN S E
25 EREEEE -

FRELREE

KAREB ANEESREXNEE
TR B AR QN REHR AL AF
JE &5 48 #9355,303,0006 7T (=&
— T 4F 1 #9343,229,00078 7T) &
AEEEETEBRMNE TR
£020,336,916,0000% (=& —*H
£ :17,726,331,0000% ) 51 & -

EEEEBRAR ZE—<FFR

113



114

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —

16. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) From continuing operations (Continued)

(0

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share are presented as the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
share during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the loss
for year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$Nil (2015: approximately
HK$7,288,000) and the denominator used is the same
as that detailed above for calculation of basic loss per
share from continuing and discontinued operation.

Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share are presented as the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
share during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016

RE+-A=+—RILEE
16. HEREIE (#8)

(b) REFELEXEK (BR)

(0

G EE S
HREBE T "FER=-ZF—H
F+-—A=+—RHIEFEARHA
PR ME TS LB -
EIFREEEE

RECKIEREET
ZREAEE

RNATEE ANEESREAREE
TR E AR R R A A (R AT S
BEOZEBET(ZE—RE: Y
7,288,000/ 7T) & £ SRRl A
Mﬁﬁmaﬁﬁﬁa%im%%
Bz ERERNEEZE—» 5t
%o

SR BEE
HREBE-T—A"FR-FT—
FT-A=+—HLEFEARRA
BB EEETT Ak RAE
25 EREERRE -



Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN el

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"XF+-A=+—HILFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ -BERER

Leasehold
improvements Furniture
fixtures and and Motor
fittings equipment  Machineries vehicles Total
HENE
R EE
RERE# BGHARRME e RE #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TR TER
Cost BE
At 1 January 2015 R-Z-F%—A—H 609 4,595 452 33,414 39,070
Additions RE 12,356 19,837 11,654 31,832 75,679
Disposals & - - - (2,552) (2,552)
Exchange differences 5= (825) (1,716) (890) (3,145) (6,576)
At 31 December 2015 and RZE-RAF+ZA=+—-Bk
1 January 2016 —2-R"¥—-A—H 12,140 22,716 11,216 59,549 105,621
Additions RE 13,832 2,466 891 17,321 34,510
Disposals HE - - - (6,986) (6,986)
Exchange differences ERER (976) (1,258) (1,112) (1,662) (5,008)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+ZA=1+—H 24,99 23,924 10,995 68,222 128,137
Accumulated depreciation ~ REHTEREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2015 —hF—-A—H 609 3414 25 11,960 16,008
Charge for the year AEEMR 3,210 602 108 8,493 12,413
Disposals HE - - - (1,276) (1,276)
Impairment A - 550 422 2,732 3,704
Exchange differences i R%%ﬁ (656) (1,008) (428) (2,508) (4,600)
At 31 December 2015 —hET-A=T-BR
and 1 January 2016 N 3,163 3,558 127 19,401 26,249
Charge for the year KEEMHR 5,402 1,115 108 12,210 18,835
Disposals & - - - (1,385) (1,385)
Impairment RE 243 4,165 974 604 5,986
Exchange differences ERER (579) (30 n) (1,057) (1,877)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RE+-A=1+—H 8,229 8,808 998 29,773 47,808
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—A"F+ZA=1+—H 16,767 15,116 9,997 38,449 80,329
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZE-—RF+-A=1+—H 8,977 19,158 11,089 40,148 79,372
As at 31 December 2016, the Group engaged an RZE—RF+ZA=+—H £&£E
independent valuer to determine the fair value of the ZRE-ZBIEEMETYE  BE K
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2016 BER_E-—RFT_A=+—RHZA

FE([ZAFE]D) - RHEREHE5
W B KR R LR ER - BREE

(the “Fair Value”). In assessing whether impairment
is required for the property, plant and equipment, the

carrying value is compared with the respective recoverable
amount. The Fair Value was determined using the market
approach. The recoverable amount used in assessing the
impairment loss is the fair value less costs of disposal with
reference to the Fair Value. The fair value was under level
3 fair value measurement. After impairment assessment
by the management, impairment loss of approximately
HK$5,986,000 (2015: HK$3,704,000) was recognised.

SHAR AN B S BETLER -ZATF

EVRATSAERT - R AR EEE

Bz af e El & 5T A FER B EK

Ko BERELBZAFE - AFEES

MAFEFE-KEEERTRERT

{h1& - B HER R EE 18 495,986,000/ 7T
— T4 13,704,000/ 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H#E—ZF—"XF+-A=+—HIFE

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 18. RN ELAFIZRES

2016 2015
ZE—RE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Unlisted investment FELEMEE
Share of net assets JEIEEEFE 38,465 20,354
38,465 20,354
Details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2015 and RZE—RAFRER_T—RF+H
2016 are as follows: —+—H XAEEBEQRZFBN

T

Percentage of
the Company’s

Place of indirect
incorporation/ ownership Principal
Name registration interest  activities
EEx 2 FEEHE
M BEEERZ
£z iR Bk IEXH
WMIER B EREREERA A The PRC 25%  Manufacturing and sale
Zhejiang GBS Energy H of lithium-ion power
Co., Limited* batteries, the PRC
FENEEEMTHNE
pRs
AINERAR BB R A A The PRC 20%  Environmental automobile
Shenzhen SUSTC Fuel Cell F and related business, the
Company Limited* PRC
RIRABRAEEFET - F
* For identification purpose only * Rl
The above associates are accounted for using the equity LitE e A PR AR RN G S MR
method in the consolidated financial statements. FARR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IN=NIEL e e

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"XF+-A=+—HILFE

18. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. REABAFIZHEE (1#)
Set as below are the summarised financial information of the TXHEHINKAEREARZBZERF] 2
associates which is accounted for using equity method. BRI E -
Zhejiang GBS Energy Shenzhen SUSTC Fuel Cell
Co., Limited Company Limited
HIEERBEREERAR FUNSERBEHERBRAR
2016 2015 2016 2015
—B-RE —T-IfF —B-RE —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FET T#ET FET
At 31 December: B+=B=+—8:
Non-current assets FRBEE 59,729 36,157 29,288 -
Current assets MEBEE 147,321 147,198 38,196 -
Non-current liabilities FrEas (1,918) - (22,417) -
Current liabilities MEEE (87,276) (101,940 (60) -
Net assets BEFE 117,856 81,415 45,007 -
Group's share of net assets REEREEESE 29,464 20,354 9,001 -
Year ended 31 December: #ZE+=R
=t+—HL#E:
Revenue WA 193,515 157,603 = -
Profit/(loss) for the year RERHF/ (EE) 42,265 26,964 (70,074) -
Other comprehensive 2w (BB) e
(loss)/income (6,786) (1,199) 570 -
Total comprehensive income/ ~ AEE 2 E KNS,
(loss) for the year (BR) B 35,479 25,765 (69,504) -
Dividends received from BUEB & ARRE
associates - - - -
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HHZ T —RF+T-_A=T—HILFE

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

19. AIHIHESRMEE

2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAET
Unlisted investments ELETIRE
— Investments outside —BBEINEE
Hong Kong 72,188 10,982

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
entered into an agreement with an independent third
party to acquire the equity interest in /8 BiEZREE
ZHARBBMR AT ("LBL@") at a consideration of
RMB13,200,000. |/&1=i8 is incorporated in the PRC and is
an unlisted Sino-foreign venture under the PRC Law, which
does not have quoted market price in an active market.
The Group intend to hold the investment for long-term
capital appreciation and had no intention to dispose of the
investment in the near future. As at 31 December 2016 and
2015, the Group hold 8.9% equity interest in _E/&{Z38. Mr.
Zhu Shengliang and Dr. Li Zhengshan, the executive directors
of the Company, hold 17.4% and 0.9% equity interest of
8118 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
entered into an agreement with an independent third party
to acquire the equity interest in FERFEAREFRA
B ("HHMER", together with its subsidiaries as “Meilai
Group”) at a consideration of RMB60,000,000. 7 #f3
2K is incorporated in the PRC as an unlisted limited liability
company under the PRC Law, which does not have quoted
market price in an active market. The Group intend to
hold the investment for long-term capital appreciation and
had no intention to dispose of the investment in the near
future. As at 31 December 2016, the Group hold 5% equity
interest in & MRE K.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

19.

20.

B IR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"XF+-A=+—HILFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

The unlisted equity investment is measured at cost
less impairment at each reporting date. The fair value
information of this available-for-sale financial asset has
not been disclosed as the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant and the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used when measuring fair value. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the fair
value cannot be reliably measured. During the year ended
31 December 2016, impairment loss of approximately
HK$5,707,000 (2015: HK$4,971,000) was provided.

19. THHESMEE (1)

REREDE FELEMRARE ARAR
HMBBESE - AR A A FEGTE
EEME B EcYER RN
IE1E*+ZTAE'IQTQEE\}%MH&%%
E&Iﬂ%x&tlﬁwﬁﬂjﬁ BEEL
AFEER A ARBEERAEL
FEEXASEFE - REE_E—RF
+=ZA=+—HIEFE  495,707,000/5
JL(—Z—H 44,971,000/ T ) B &
BT EE-

PREPAYMENTS 20. FAft&
2016 2015
—RE —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Prepayment for: TH|IEE 2 BT
— Purchase of property, —EEWE WENKF

plant and equipment 33,669 36,656

EEEEBRAR ZE—<FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &= —-F —
21. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

AETZAZt-BILEE
21. B REERRE

Present value of

Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments
REHERE REHEREZHE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —hHF ZZ-RE —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#&RT FET T#&RT FET
Within one year —FR 16,103 9,965 15,154 8,776
In the second to fifth years, —EERLFA
inclusive (BREEWT) 1,694 14,621 1,639 13,584
17,797 24,586 16,793 22,360
Less: Unearned finance L REREUEE WA
income (1,004) (2,226)
Present value of minimum REEEHEEREL
lease payments receivable HE 16,793 22,360
Less: Amount receivables 218 A MR
within 12 months ZFIE (FIA
(shown under RBEE)
current assets) (15,154) (8,776)
Amount receivables NEA%BENRZ
after 12 months PIE 1,639 13,584

It is the Group's policy to lease out certain of its plant and
machinery under finance leases. All leases are on a fixed
repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered
into for contingent rental payments. At the end of each
lease term, the lessees have the options to purchase the
plant and machinery at nominal prices.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of
the Group's finance lease receivables are principally
denominated in RMB. Effective interest rates ranged from
approximately 5.7% to 7.0% (2015: 5.7% to 7.0%) per
annum.

The finance lease receivables are secured by the leased
motor vehicles and guarantees provided by independent
third parties. The Group is not permitted to sell or re-
pledge the collaterals in absence of default by the lessees.
The lessees are required to pay the Group through twelve
quarterly lease payments.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

22,

23.

NN el

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T — RET-_A=+T—HILFE

INVENTORIES 22. ¥R

2016 2015
—E—REFE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Raw materials R #Y 8,934 -
Work in progress R 667 -
Finished goods BIRK fh 87,592 -
Consumables JEAEm 77 4,087
97,270 4,087

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. PR 5 SR I B H fth B U 3R
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Trade receivables FEW & 5 5k I8 304 -
Less: impairment losses R EE R - -
304 -
Prepayments KR 396,446 443,934
Deposits and other receivables e M H IR R 471,253 194,037
Amounts due from directors JE W = 5018 1,721 1,826
869,724 639,797
Included in prepayments represent amount prepayments ENFRERERENHERRIELD
to suppliers of approximately HK$338,502,000 (2015: 338,502,000 L (ZE—HF : 4
approximately HK$350,845,000), prepayment for acquisition 350,845,000 0) - WiE—EHRE A
of a subsidiary of HK$29,503,000, prepayment for research 7] 2 ¥8 14 729,503,000/ 7T Afi 2 B H
and development projects of approximately HK$27,026,000 2 B F#927,026,0008 T (ZF—H
(2015: approximately HK$93,089,000), and prepayment for F 1 4993,089,000/ 70) K EMFHA S 2

other expenses.

B
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(Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, within the balances of other
receivables, a balance of HK$359,681,000 (2015:
HK$65,653,000) carries interest rate ranging from 1.5%
to 8% (2015: at 6%) per annum, repayable within one
year and is secured by equity interest of the debtor, being
an unlisted limited liability company, and guarantees
provided by the related parties of the debtor. The directors
of the Company monitored the collectibility of these
receivables closely with reference to their respective current
creditworthiness and repayment records. As at 31 December
2016, all these receivables were neither past due nor
impaired and in the process of renewal. The management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of the these receivables as they are considered
fully recoverable. Upon its original maturity and up to the
approval date of these consolidated financial statements,
approximately HK$304,901,000 were fully settled.

Amounts due from directors are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Impairment losses in respect of other receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against other
receivables directly.

At 31 December 2016, other receivables of HK$67,498,000
(2015: HK$14,557,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired other receivables related
to debtors that has defaulted on the principal payments. The
Group has considered the collateral over these balances and
included in the impairment.

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sre BRI AL

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &= —-F —
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.

NFETZA=+—RHIEFE
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
A R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T — RET-_A=+T—HILFE
23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. By SFEREMEK

24,

25.

(Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days
to its trade customers. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. For new customers, payment in advance is normally
required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by the directors.

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on invoiced
date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

(#)

FEWE 5518
REERESHEFPIZH30E90K 2 F15
FEH -5 R2EFPHXESEERRE
Ryl- TP —RABNRIE - AEE
B S EL R G O] SR M R R BE A o
EETHRaBER-

1R 55 22 B A O 2 MR 5 35008 (30
B R ) BB S AT AN T

2016 2015

—E—REFE —ET—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

0 to 30 days 0E30K 304 -

As at 31 December 2016, all trade receivables were
neither past due nor impaired. Based on past experience,
the management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there are no
significant change in their respective credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A
SUBSIDIARY

Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the balance of HK$84,001,000
was not subject to maturity. The Group is entitled to redeem
the investments with the banks at anytime with immediate
effect. The estimated return from the short-term investments
is 3.15% per annum. The accrued and unpaid interest will
be received upon redemption of the investment from the
banks. The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amount of short-term investments approximate
their fair value at end of the reporting period. All the short
term investments had been redeemed during the year ended
31 December 2016.

24,

25.

R-E—XRE+-A=+—8 FEE
WE S E Ra I AR E - AR5 A
FEs TEEMEE ARZSEHRS
A EEE82hEEXEE 254
BRI A A B BB - BB AR
LEBIERRERK-

FE Uy — [ Bt B 2> B 3F #2 Bx
B R IA

JEUT — P 8 2 B SRR R B SRR IR A
HiF R B RARERER-

ERRE

RZE—RAF+ZA=+—H &%
84,001,000/ 7T AR 5% B[R - AN & B B #
PERFRNBF[ASRITIE R X SR E - 2SR
R E 2 T FERE HB3.15% ° E5T
KA FE R MR 1T I [ 45 & B LU o
RAREEZRE RWEREHHEE
ZEEEEQATERE -REE-Z
—"F+—A=+—HBILFE AR
BB O HED o
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sre SRR MRt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z =% —

NFETZA=+—RHIEFE

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 6. fTE&MmTH
2016 2015
ZE—RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRT FHBT
Profits guaranteed arrangement i ) OR 78 22 BE 4,260 -

Pursuant to the capital injection into Meilai Group, which
classified as available-for-sale financial asset, during the year
ended 31 December 2016, certain shareholders of Meilai
Group (the “Guarantors”) covenanted and guaranteed to
the Company that the audited consolidated net profit after
tax of Meilai Group shall not be less than the profit targets
as summarised below:

(i)  for the year ended 31 December 2016 shall be no
less than RMB160 million (the “2016 Whole Year
Guaranteed Profit”), with accumulated target net
profit of RMB160 million;

(i) for the year ended 31 December 2017 shall be no
less than RMB290 million (the “2017 Whole Year
Guaranteed Profit”), with accumulated target net
profit of RMB450 million; and

(i) for the year ended 31 December 2018 shall be no
less than RMB470 million (the “2018 Whole Year
Guaranteed Profit”), with accumulated target net
profit of RMB920 million.

In the event that the actual net profit is less than the target
net profit, the Guarantors shall pay the Company on a
dollar-for-dollar basis based on the formula as stipulated in
the investment agreement.

Additionally, if the Meilai Group successfully completes
the listing of its shares or the corporate restructuring for
its proposed listing on or before 30 June 2018, the Profit
Guarantee will lapse automatically.
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290,000,000T ([ZF—tF 2

FREGA]) - R ERAFR
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27.

28.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H 2= - =
26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 26.

(Continued)

The fair value of the profit guarantee was approximately
HK$4,260,000 (2015: Nil) as at 31 December 2016, which
was determined by the directors of the Company by
reference to the valuation performed by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited based on expected cash flow method in
which the cash flow for each year represents the difference
between the guaranteed profit and the projected net profit.
The directors of the Company estimated the projected
net profits of the acquired associate under three different
scenarios with respective scenario probabilities. The fair
value of the profit guarantee was the probability-weighted
average of the present values of the shortfalls between the
guaranteed profits and the projected net profits under the
three scenarios.

The changes in fair value of the derivative financial
instrument were recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

STRUCTURED BANK DEPOSITS

The structured bank deposits were interest-bearing
and not quoted in an active market. The principal and
interest earned are linked to the investments associated
with treasury bills and bonds of certain banks in the
PRC. As at 31 December 2015, structured bank deposits
of HK$181,442,000 can be redeemed with the bank
at anytime with immediate effect and amount of
HK$238,740,000 was subject to maturity of one month. All
the structured bank deposits had been redeemed during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$213,703,000 (2015: approximately HK$36,866,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

27.

28.

—AFT-A=+—ALFE
TESmMI A (§)

R-E—RFE+-_A=+—8 &mfR
FBZRFEL AHL,260,0008 T (==
—hE \) TRARAREELZEGE
FEERAFIUEHESREEETZ
HEEREET - REBEHRAEREEF &
izfﬁfﬁmuéh4%umm'“'J5ﬁTEi/ﬂlJ%@7’FUZ
ERoANREBRE=FTRIBE LG
FHATU IR & A B2 TRORAE R R S EE
S22 AT RENE < m T RFE 2 A FETIIRE
A RZ = @R T 2 TR F] Z M
BB 2 T REMEF I E -

HEeMIAZ ATEEDERE
R EM2ERERRE -

Fﬂ>

H>M

?

RIMERITER

ERBERITERBE  WEERMS
RIE o A& KT IRELF B B2 K A B B
ERATRITES ZHEHB - N _F
—AF+—A=+—H &BHETT
3X181,442,0007% 7T A B R RO AF (A 8R 77
& 3 - M238,740,0005% 7T Bl 7 — & A
- Rz R"F+-A=+—
AIEFE FrEERERTEREEE
@ o

HITREA®FR
R-B—AF+-A=+—B %%

EAAREFEZRITRRGEHL
£213,703,0008 T (ZE—HF : 4
36,866,000/ 7T ) ° H #a A REE BN
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 H#E—ZF—"F+-A=+—HIFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. FE {52 5 SR A By Bt FE 41 3R
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ET—hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAET
Trade payables FETE SR 10,900 2,988
Accruals and other payables FERT B A R B ST R 37,347 35,052
Received in advance for FRIER B TEM 2 IR
warranty services - 2,519
48,247 40,559
Trade payables BNES
The aging analysis of the trade payables, based on the date *ETJ%WHX WJ EI HHE 2 ENE SN
of receipt of goods, is as follows: BRER D ATLOT
2016 2015
—RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAT
0 to 180 days 0E 180K 10,900 2,920
Over 180 days HBiR180K - 68
10,900 2,988
30. BORROWINGS 30. A8
2016 2015
—E—REF —F—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FAET
Other loans repayable AR—FRNEEZEMER
within one year - 196
As at 31 December 2015, other loans are unsecured and E/\_ E—hETZA=1+—H H#E
repayable on demand. REEERRBIEEKEE-

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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31.

32.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &&= =%
31.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is
a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer makes contributions to the scheme at 5% -
10% and employees are required to make 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$25,000 and HK$30,000 from June
2014. Mandatory contributions to the MPF Scheme vest
immediately.

Subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC participate in various
defined contribution retirement plans (“Plans”) organised by
local authorities for the Group’s employees in the PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute, based on a certain
percentage of the basic payroll, to the Plans. The Group has
no other obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with these Plans beyond the annual contributions
described above.

—RETZA=t—BLHFE

BFEFIRE

{& 8RR 3EF

AR BRI BB R BN A TS H BIED)
AEBATE A EGIEE S AR
DS EHE ([ SHE)]) - RS

B —EBBL ETATEZRAEMRK
RIRETE - BIERTESTE BEIRE
BHERIW A Z5% = 10%A 51 24 2
ifiE 8 RIZEIRS % M5k - & AR £
PR 525,000 70 BB = —F N At
30,0008 7T s FE & 5T & 2 98 HIl 1 4
AR o

RABEMKRLZ BRI AAKEZ
TEERESEAMTRESR 2 TR
FERFORNGTE] (T2 FRTE)) - % FHH
BRRARBEAHFEZETEDLRA
% FRT B - B B F R KON R
SEVEAMBEZFTEABE RS
w|AMNREE

SHARE CAPITAL 32. B&F
No. of shares Amount
BinE R o]
HK$'000
TAT
Authorised: BE:
Ordinary shares of R—E—hF—H—H"
HK$0.1 each at —E-hAF+-A=1+—8"
1 January 2015, ZERF-A-HK
31 December 2015, ZE—RF+tZA=+—8
1 January 2016 and BREEIBIT 2 B
31 December 2016 800,000,000,000 80,000,000

EEEEBRAR —E—<EFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —RF+T-_A=T—HILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 32. Be& (#8)
No. of shares Amount
Bip® B &8
Notes HK$'000
M3 FET
Issued and fully paid: ERTREARE:
Ordinary shares of W—_E—HAF—A—H
HK$0.1 each at BREEIE LY
1 January 2015 T 14,187,144,756 1,418,714
Shares issued under RIRE AR B3 1T
the share option schemes R% 15 969,513,000 96,951
Subscription of new shares RE RREE TR
during the year 5,169,214,991 516,922
Ordinary shares of RZE—hF
HK$0.1 each at +ZA=+—8XK
31 December 2015 and —ET—-RF—HA—H
1 January 2016 SREEABTZ
R il 20,325,872,747 2,032,587
Shares issued under RIRE AR B3 1T
the share option schemes R in (a) 12,000,000 1,200
Ordinary shares of RZZE—RF+=A
HK$0.1 each at —t+t—HBKREE
31 December 2016 0.18 702 L@k 20,337,872,747 2,033,787

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016

(@ During the year, 6,000,000 and 6,000,000 share
options were exercised under the share option scheme
at the price of HK$0.201 and HK$0.108 per share
respectively. Accordingly, the Company'’s issued share
capital increased by approximately HK$1,200,000
and its share premium account increased by
approximately HK$2,126,000, after charging from
the equity compensation reserve of approximately

HK$1,472,000.

(a)

F 7+ 6,000,00017 X6,000,00017
EhiEDIRBERETE D AIZ
Fi%0.2017%8 7T %0.108%E T 2 B
BT - E U R s %ﬁ@ﬂ\
fib 5 #91,472,000/8 T 1% A A
zaﬁéﬁﬂiﬁaiﬂn%m,zoo,ooo
7 7T - M B 19 v (B BR Al 32 N 4y
2,126,000/ 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE —ZT—"F+-A=+—HILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

33.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of

32. BR& (48)

AEBEBEARZ BIZNREREEF
BrREZEEN WBBRIEGEEER
flz ¥ AR AER AR

AEBREEEBEARANREZRER
HEZER LR EARRE - NEH
#i8 BIR B - BATHA D M A {0 B R -
BTHER BRBEEBEEILEEE
BE R EBRBEAREYE AR

new debts, redemption of existing debts or selling assets ERNCEEESR

to reduce debts in order to maintain sufficiency of working

capital.

RESERVES 33. &

(@) The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements (a) ANEBEREFELBREEZHNEE
therein are presented in the consolidated statement BmkEtmrARERARES
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and EmEERET -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Reserves of the Company (b) A TEIF#HE

Share-based
Share  Contributed payment  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
HEmx et

BipaE BARR ZRERE RHER Ehy

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT FTET TET TR TR

At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE-1F¥—-A—A 727,895 94,601 366,715 (1,997,317) (808,106)

Subscription of new shares R EEH 17 1,252,776 - - - 1,252,776
Recognition of equity-settled E AEREE LR

share-based payment SR 2B - - 127,400 - 127,400
Share issued under share  RIZEEARIERT BT

option schemes 139,404 - (102,545) - 36,859

Loss for the year AFEEER - - - (536,738) (536,738)

At 31 December 2015 RZZ—RHF

+-A=+—-H 2,120,075 94,601 391,570 (2,534,055) 72,191

At 1 January 2016 R-_E—"F—A—H 2,120,075 94,601 391,570 (2,534,055) 72,191
Recognition of equity-settled  #E 58 AARE 22 45 E W LA Bk 15

share-based payment Sz HE - - 3,099 - 3,099
Share issued under share BIEBRE BIBTRN

option schemes 2,126 - (1,472) - 654

Loss for the year $¢FE§%§ - - - (235,573) (235,573)

At 31 December 2016 ZZ-RE
+ A=+— 2,122,201 94,601 393,197 (2,769,628) (159,629)

EEEEBRAR —E—<EFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &= —-F —
33. RESERVES (Continued)

RE+=A=+—RILEE
33. il (#8)

() Nature and purpose of reserves (0 RFEHEEREMN

(i) Share premium account () BRGEER
Share premium represents premium arising from & 19 4 (B H5 1% 68 B AR AR
the issue of shares at a price in excess of their HEZBTROMES 2R
par value per share and is not distributable but B BRI Sk AR
may be applied in paying up unissued shares of B GAA D B EEEITIE
the Company to be issued to the shareholders R RRAIR 2 N A FIR
of the Company as fully paid bonus shares BATIR G 2 K R EEE
or in providing for the premiums payable on R ERIEN (B
repurchase of shares.

(ii)  Contributed surplus (i) HAEE
The contributed surplus of the Company ZF’“’TZ%%‘W\E’%EEA$A
represents the difference between the AIENBE A EREE
consolidated shareholders’ funds of the “’\TZiﬁ/\HxﬁéfﬁEﬁE{\

subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Company, and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued
for the acquisition at the time of the group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company's shares in 1995.

Under the applicable laws of Bermuda, the
contributed surplus account of a company is
available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become

ARBRGBE—NNEFE
MRETTEEEAR AU
Frasr1 2 A QB R B EEZ
ERHo

REBRZERER —
LIFNCIPA- P53 S
7k o AT i R A T B
o AR RBAEREBAR
HREIRSR BB HIEH D
K :

- ARFENEERD
Ik 2 18 48 7 (838 B 2

due; or BE =

—  the realisable value of its assets would - HEECUERER
thereby be less than the aggregate of its IHEREBEEED
liabilities and its issued share capital and BITRARE G &®E
share premium accounts. AR 2 HEA o

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T — RET-_A=+T—HILFE
33. RESERVES (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iii)  Translation reserve

(iv)

The translation reserve has been established and
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for foreign currency translation.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees
and consultants of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for equity-settled share-based payments in note
3 to the consolidated financial statements.

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

33. ks (#8)

(0 REUERBH (E)
(i) REMEE
BEREBECRERINERE
RN 2GR BRRYL KRG
3o

(iv) BRGZANZH B

PR D S A 2 FOR R B AR
IR A M TSR M S35 A
R AR W AR S 2 3K
HRA 2 B ERRAERD
MAKEREES RERRLZ
BERSAEETARITERERER
BzRF¥E-

34. FAFMBRAR

2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#ET FET
Non-current assets FEREBDEE
Property, plant and equipment WE  BEREE 6,412 6,919
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRARZKRE 27,678 14,815
34,090 21,734
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BT B A B FRIE 1,831,913 1,995,246
Prepayments, deposits and TENRT K - He B Hh JE IGR
other receivables 15,035 2,808
Bank and cash balances IRIT MR 46k 7,328 98,947
1,854,276 2,097,001
Current liabilities nEAE
Accruals and other payables FEETE B R E AR 14,208 13,957
14,208 13,957
Net current assets mENEESRE 1,840,068 2,083,044
NET ASSETS SERE 1,874,158 2,104,778
Capital and reserves BEXR R
Share capital % A 2,033,787 2,032,587
Reserves i (159,629) 72,191
TOTAL EQUITY BRuE 1,874,158 2,104,778

EEEEBRAR —E—<EFFR
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees, executives,
officers, directors, business consultants, agents, legal and
financial advisers of the Company and the Company's
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 13 June 2013
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of shares options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —RF+T-_A=T—HILFE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 35. BRItz ®RIA

AAFEM—ABRESE ([ZE
gl BER/AANKEKRNEEFHE
BlzaER2EEREERH IR &
BiR2EEREARRRARAMEL
AlZERERBER TTRAR 2K
BB B XBEE RE XENY
BEM -ZrEa T —=F~A+=
B BRIFERTTEUERER] - B A
HHZAE—EBEM+F-

R RIEZAT BB AR L 2 RITEBR
REHE SEERBREETERE
AR REARREEITIR10% 2 288 -
PMER+ 8 A IR AR BB R A )
ZETEIBRA BB RERTZRER
E B AERREARRE#HITROZ
1% /AR —FROBBILREZE
PR AR B RN & | 4 e AR SR L fE

MARBIRE—EF &Eo{TRABX=E
DRG R S ST IB B AR BB RRE
BAENEHBUIFRTESHE-F
F REMATZ@EASMR mARQF
R IERERBIIERTETIRS
R EAR L BBERNFEAQRE
BT 0.1% 3 B1E (IR B AR
NI EMFTE ) 385,000,000/ 7T
ZEAERE BEERRRAE LK
AR B AL



For the year ended 31 December 2016 H 2= - =
35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, and commences after a certain vesting
period and ends on a date which is not later than five years
from the date of the offer of the share options or the expiry
date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

Date of grant Exercise period

Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
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—NE+-A=+—BAILEE
35. IRtz ®RIB (#8)

BB BRI B 24 AR
TORAES MARARE KA
BB TZEEREBE - CROBERE
ZITEMAHESETE  WhETHE
HIM& A EEHBREEH A HE
NEBRFE A%t 8lER B H (A
REERE) BRI

BREZTEENHESET BT
EROARRBRNRBREZHBEMZ
BT E : (DA R BRNDNEERE
#WABRTAER S A 2 PR il
B MNAAFBRMHNEBLOEH 2 EE
(AERERE) -

BRRTEE TERAAZTER
BRAEG EREZHER -

R

B 2 FEERIFBMT

Exercise price

"HAH TR TEE
2005 9 August 2005 29 August 2005 to 8 August 2015 HK$0.102*
2005 —ZEZRFENANH —EERFNAZ+NABE=ZZE-—RAFNANR 0.1027&7T*
2008 6 February 2008 6 February 2008 to 5 February 2018 HK$0.1140
2008 —EENFEZAA —EENFE-_ARNHE-_ZE—N\F-AAH 0.1140/8 7T
2012(b) 4 December 2012 1 January 2015 to 3 December 2022 HK$0.1200
2012(0) ZZE—Z=ZF+=AWMAH —hF—A—HEZZTZ=_F+=A=H 0.1200% 7T
2013 6 September 2013 6 September 2013 to 5 September 2023 HK$0.1080
2013 —E-=FhHXAH —E—=FNAANBEZE-_=FNLAAA 0.1080/% 7T
2014(a) 29 July 2014 29 July 2014 to 28 July 2024 HK$0.1136
2014(a) —mEEA=Z+NH —MOFLtAZTAAZ=ZZ-MELA=+\H 011368
2014(b) 20 November 2014 20 November 2014 to 19 November 2024 HK$0.2010
2014(b) —mHFE+—H=Z+H —AF+—AZ+RE_Z-_MFE+—A+NHE 020108
2015 14 July 2015 14 July 2015 to 13 July 2025 HK$0.3950
2015 —EF+A+HEAE ZE-AFtAtTMOBEE_Z-_RAF+A+=H 0.3950/% 7T
2016 9 December 2016 9 December 2016 to 8 December 2026 HK$0.2280
2016 —E-RE+ZAAAE ZE-RETZANBEZZE-_R"E+ZANR 0.22807% 7T
* Following the issue of right shares on 1 February 2008, * RZZEZNF A —BEITHERRHG

the exercise prices of share options were adjusted from
HK$0.1020 to HK$0.1140. The number of share options was
also adjusted as a result of the issue of right shares.

B BREZ{TEEDH0.10208 T
FAEZ011408 T BREEE A
BEITHBRRR A T A -

EEEEBRAR —E—<EFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —RXF+-_A=T—HILFE
35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 35.

LIRSz 2 IR (#8)

On 29 November 2016, the Company granted 200,000,000
option shares to a consultant in exchange for services.
During the year, the services have not yet provided by the
consultant; therefore no recognition of the fair value of the
services received for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Details of the share options outstanding during the year are
as follows:

R-E—RF+—A=-+hIB KARQ7A
[A] — %% B4 8 % 11200,000,0000% i A 4
B - DAIRERARTS o F A - 2B M AR IR
HEBRS HEE T ~F+_-A4
=+ —HIFEITEERDWERS 2
NF(E

FARRHRITEZBREZFEOT:

2016 2015
ZE-RE —F-hf
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise Number of exercise
share options price  share options price
nigFy TS
WERESE TERE BREHE 1B
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Outstanding at the beginning ~ R EX K 171E
of the year 1,843,000,000 0.223 2,415,070,000 0.161
Granted during the year REREH 25,000,000 0.228 400,000,000 0.395
Exercised during the year RERTTE (12,000,000) 0.155  (969,513,000) 0.138
Expired during the year RERZIH = (2,557,000) 0.179
Outstanding at the end REREARITEE
of the year 1,856,000,000 0.216  1,843,000,000 0.223

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$0.155. The
options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 7.6 years (2015: 8.5
years) and the exercise prices range from HK$0.108 to
HK$0.395 (2015: HK$0.102 to HK$0.395). In 2016, options
were granted on 9 December. The estimated fair values of
the options was approximately HK$3,099,000. In 2015,
options were granted on 14 July and the estimated fair
values of the options was approximately HK$127,400,000.

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016

RERITE 2 BRENITEB R 2
R AB B0.1558 JL » R 1M &
TEZEREZ ARG ENE
HA76F (T —HF 85%F) M7
FENF0.1088 7L E0.3958 L (=
T—RF:0.1028 L =0.39587T) °
RZE—RF BRERTZANH
B -ZEERBEZ AT AFEOR
3,099,000/8 7T c A = — R F - fEARIE
REA+THEEL HFAFELAE
127,400,000 7L



Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

NN el

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T —"XF+ A =+—HILFE
35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 35. IRtz RIB (#8)

These fair values were calculated using the binominal pricing ZENTEFAZEACEREGE-
model. The inputs into the model are as follows: REZ S NSRBI -

9 December 2016

—RE
+=ZAAH
Share price BB HK$0.22875 7T
Exercise price T E HK$0.2287 7T
Expected volatility TERT K18 71.96%
Expected life TEETEFH 10 years F
Risk free rate 1 [ g ) 2 1.516%
Expected dividend yield iR dSNEIE 0%
Expected volatility was determined by calculating the TEEIEBR DB BT EANTREZES
historical volatility of the Company's share price. The RIBEETE - REVME R 2 BT FHEER
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, REEZ REMG A ATEE 176
based on the Group's best estimate, for the effects of PRI RITAERE CZEMEHTRE-
non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.
36. LEASE COMMITMENTS 36. R &IE
At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum REER - RBETSTHEELEHER
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in ETHRAERBEMELZ N 2 RRKIE
respect of certain offices and factory premises are analysed MENREEITTWT
as follows:
2016 2015
—RE —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Within one year n— ilﬁ 18,915 33,109
In the second to fifth year inclusive 55 —ZEFE HF R
(@%éfﬁﬁ) 22,115 46,918
41,030 80,027
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 H#E—ZE—"F+=-A=+—HIFE

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. BX KR
The Group's capital commitments at the end of the R ERR ANEE 2 ERNEENT

reporting period are as follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—1F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Contracted but not provided for ERTAEREE
Establishment of a subsidiary K — B A A 5,612 5,969
Establishment of a joint venture B —H&EaERF 101,007 -
Purchase of property, BEME WELEE
plant and equipment 12,794 13,566
119,413 19,535
38. OTHER COMMITMENTS 38. Hfthakif
2016 2015
—E—-RE —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Contracted but not provided for BETRERBEE
Research and development 18 |
projects - 27,927
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. REAFXH
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRAERE IS IRR E M D T E 22
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the 5 RERIN REERFREREER I
Group had no other transactions and balances with its EEMEMRZ SRR

related parties during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &&= =%

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the financial position of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end

—RETZA=t—BLHFE

40. FLFEEMB 2T Z#1E

TRBEESBRUAFEXEFEER
FESEARAEBIM BN T EH Y Z
$’AETM¢E§§’AET°E$ L R E A

HE AR ZFE

@@NA BRITER -

N iﬁﬂﬂf ARREEHBRRZHFH

of the reporting period are as follows: BEWT
Percentage
of the
Place of Issued/paid-up ownership
incorporation/ registered interest/
Name registration capital  voting power  Principal activities
Fissa®E/
300 A BRT/ #& RR#
£ Bioi R BEEREF Balk FERH
American Compass Inc. us Ordinary 100%*  Investment holding
US$17,000,000
EE EFli REER
17,000,000% 7
Billion Energy Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100%  Investment holding
KeEEBERR B0 2B REZK
Hybrid Kinetic Motors Corporation ~ US US$1,000 100%  Development of high-tech electric
motor vehicles
EJE 1,000% 7T RERHREYE
HK Battery Technology Inc. us Ordinary 99.9%  Development of high-tech electric
US$109,532 motor vehicles
EE LiAiR109,532%E T RERRREERE
EEBFENERERAA The PRC Registered 60.21%  Development of advanced battery
(Lianyungang Hybrid Kinetic capital of materials
New Energy Co., Limited)* US$27,000,000
g &R R RES MR
27,000,000 7T
ETEIERMRE The PRC Registered 100%  Sales of high-tech electric motor
HERRLA capital of vehicles and components and
RMB5,000,000 provision of after-sale services
ﬁ/afﬂﬁ%ﬁauiuﬁﬁ hiE HMER HERRREDTEREY
HEARRD AR #5,000,0007 ARG ER R
LETEREREBRAA The PRC Registered 100%  Provision of finance lease services
capital of
RMB30,000,000
HErERERERRLA e AR REREHERS
AR
30,000,0007T

* Shares held directly by the Company

# For identification purpose only

* BOBARREERE
# (EXEE %

EEEEBRAR —E—<EFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HiZ T —RF+T-_A=T—HILFE
40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. 2GR EXEEMBLATZHE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that

(#&)

TRIREAHAEE M

EEKRZIE

have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. ZRe R 2 B A R E K o BT E R
The summarised financial information represents amounts ZHET AR M AT 258
before inter-company eliminations.

EEBTFENERARLTE

Lianyungang Hybrid Kinetic
New Energy Co., Limited

2016 2015
ZS—-RE¥ —_T—hF
Principal place of business/ FTEEE D MK ER The PRC
country of incorporation =8
% of ownership interests / R ERTEE 2
voting rights held by NCI MEEERREEY% 39.79%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
At 31 December: »+=-—B=+—A:
Non-current assets IERBEE 14,457 14,663
Current assets mENEE 80,506 88,191
Non-current liabilities EMBEE - -
Current liabilities mENAE (14,422) (12,051)
Net assets BEFE 80,541 90,803
Accumulated NCI RETEERE R 32,047 36,131
Year ended 31 December: B8E+_-_B=+—HLFEE:
Revenue WA - -
Loss for the year REFEEE (5,035) (14,510)
Total comprehensive income ’1\@4&/\4\“ L (10,261) (19,837)
Loss for the year allocated to NCI SELEIERER 2
REEEE (2,003) (5,774)
Net cash used in operating activities 42 5B FT AR & F58 (4,114) (6,530)
Net cash used in investing activities & & EBFT AR & F 5 (1,780) (1,455)
Net cash generated from BEETHASREFE
financing activities 8,072 7,486
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and IR & RIR&ZEBWIE M,
cash equivalents CR ) 588 2,178 (499)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiZ T — RET-_A=+T—HILFE

41.

42,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Grant of share options

On 20 January 2017, the Company has granted 10,000,000
share options to individual eligible participant with exercise
price of HK$0.1872 per share option of which the validity
period is 10 years.

Establishment of Ningbo joint venture

On 10 March 2017, EEBIEBH LR TR R G EKERA
A ("LYG Hybrid Kinetic"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the Joint Venture Agreement (the
")V Agreement”) with It B REAEZF RN BR A A
("Beijing WKW") and It R Bl = & EE 2 HR 2 & ("Beijing
Zhi Yun") (together “JV partners”) for the establishment of
B R EE N EAR QA (“Ningbo JV”) with registered
capital of RMB2,000 million. On 30 March 2017 and 2 May
2017, Beijing WKW, LYG Hybrid Kinetic and Beijing Zhi
Yun entered into a supplemental agreement and second
supplemental agreement (together the “Supplemental
Agreements”) to extend the capital contribution to Ningbo
JV from 31 March 2017 to 1 May 2017 and from 1 May
2017 to 30 June 2017 respectively.

On 28 July 2017, Beijing Zhi Yun has agreed to transfer
certain equity of Ningbo JV to LYG Hybrid Kinetic. The
transfer has not yet completed as it will become effective
when the necessary approval of the relevant PRC authority is
obtained.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 August
2017.

41.

42,

BREMEER

=B

R-E—+FE—HA=-+H ARQRFAZMH
&l A& & #2284 & H10,000,00017
B 1TTHEE AT ERE018728
JC R EE WA A10F -

RIZEREERNT
RZE—+tF=A+RH EEBEE
R AERRERBRAR ([EE
BEE| ARFIZE2EWBAA)E
IERERREAETHERDER QA
(MEREFRED RIE R EEER
BRAB (IR =]) (HiB[E&E
T EIueEmaE ([6EH=E]) M
MY B FREBNEMERAR (%
BEERA]) dAMEABARE
2,000,000,000c A= —+F = A
—tAR_ZE—tFRA-H ZEH
TEH EEZBEBNMERBEEI L0
HWaAmERE _HmaimzE (58 %
LathaEl)  PRlEmEEEE AT
YRHEBE AR T —+F=A
—+—REBE_ZT—+EnA—1"
BE-Z—+FRHABE—SLERE
“E—+tFXA=1+AH-

RZZE—+Ft+tAZ+N\B tRE=
EREMEES EENRERABAT
255 I © s A RS 1 B IR
T B2 0 B B AR
CEEE

HEGSMBERR

HREMBHRRER_-_ZFT—tFNA
=t BEhEFSMERRENE-

EEEEBRAR —E—<EFFR
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Financial Summary
B 152

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements and reclassified as

appropriate, is set out below:

For the twelve months ended 31 December

BE+-A=t+—-BHL+=fER

T XEF AL BT A AN R EFE 2 EE A
REEFAGBHE DREACBHRZILER
R BEmE YEEMRDE (WER)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
“E2--fF —E-=ZF Z—ZT-QNE —ZT-HF ZB-RE
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK’000
FTET FTET FET TET TERT
RESULTS E$ |
Revenue LON 43,068 52,183 72,170 44,945 15,529
Loss before tax BRERIEE (109,333) (186,071) (407.428) (355,281) (358,740)
Income tax credit/(expense)  Fr3FHE S,/ (Fi%) 496 (355) 662 (1,046) (805)
Loss for the year rEEER (108,837) (186,426) (406,766) (356,327) (359,545)
Attributable to; AT ALRERE:
Owners of the Company uN/NCIE YN (103,414) (179,086) (415,156) (350,517) (355,303)
Non-controlling interests IR (5,423) (7,340) (5,686) (5,810) (4,242)
(108,837) (186,426) (420,842) (356,327) (359,545)
As at 31 December
®+=R=+—-H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
“E2--F —E-=ZF Z—ZT-QNE —ZT-1F ZB-RE
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK’000
FTET FTET FTET TET FTET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
Total assets BERE 365,068 749,494 719,315 2,321,701 1,909,963
Total liabilities BERE (100,899) (108,207) (106,902) (41,675) (48,545)
Net assets BEFE 264,169 641,287 612,413 2,280,026 1,861,418
Equity attributable to: DT AT
Owners of the Company ARREBA 265,960 346,041 577,140 2,243,571 1,827,339
Non-controlling interests IFERiEs (1,791) 295,246 35,273 36,455 34,079
264,169 641,287 612,413 2,280,026 1,861,418

Hybrid Kinetic Group Limited Annual Report 2016
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